
 

   

Chief Executive 

Huw Bowen 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Town Hall, Rose Hill, 
Chesterfield, Derbyshire S40 1LP 
 
DX 12356, Chesterfield 
Email  democratic.services@chesterfield.gov.uk 
 
The Chair and Members of Cabinet Please ask for  Donna Cairns 
 Direct Line 01246 34522977 
 Fax  

 
01246 345252 

Dear Councillor, 14 October 2014 
 

Please attend a meeting of the CABINET to be held on TUESDAY, 21ST 
OCTOBER, 2014 at 10.30 am in Committee Room 1, Town Hall, Rose Hill, 
Chesterfield, the agenda for which is set out below. 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part I (Public Information) 
 

1.  
  
Declarations of Members' and Officers' Interests relating to items on the 
Agenda  
 

2.  
  
Apologies for Absence  
 

3.  
  
Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 
7th October, 2014. 
 

4.  
  
Forward Plan (Pages 5 - 22) 
 

Items Recommended to Cabinet via Executive Members 
 
Leader and Executive Member for Regeneration 
 
5.  

  
Options for Closed Community Rest Rooms (R320) (Pages 23 - 32) 
 

Executive Member for Leisure, Culture and Tourism 
 
6.  

  
Review of Venues fees and charges for 2015 (T240) (Pages 33 - 70) 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

Executive Member for Housing 
 
7.  

  
Local Government Act 1972 - Exclusion of the Public  
 
To move “That under Regulation 21(1)(b) of the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2000, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972.”   
 

Part II (Non-Public Information) 
 

8.  
  
Derbyshire County Council's Consultation on Proposed Budget Cuts - 
Potential Impact on Housing Service (H000) (Pages 71 - 80) 
 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Local Government and Regulatory Law Manager and Monitoring Officer 

 
  



CABINET 07.10.14 

1 
 
 

CABINET  
 

Tuesday, 7th October, 2014 
 

Present:- 
 

Councillor Burrows (Chair) 

 
Councillors Blank 

Gilby 
King 
Ludlow 
 

McManus 
Russell 
Serjeant 
 

Non Voting 
Members 

Brown 
Hill 
Hollingworth 

Huckle 
Martin Stone 

 
*Matters dealt with under Executive Powers 
 

92  
  

DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' AND OFFICERS' INTERESTS 
RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
 
Councillor King declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute No. 98 as a 
representative of the Innovation Centres Management Board.  
 
Councillor Hollingworth wished it to be noted in respect of Minute 99 that, 
while not having an interest to declare, had formerly line managed one of 
the applicants briefly. 
 

93  
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from the Chief Executive. 
 

94  
  

MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 23 September 2014 
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



CABINET 07.10.14 

2 
 
 

95  
  

FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Forward Plan for the four month period November 2014 – February 
2015 was reported for information. 
 
* RESOLVED – 
 
That the Forward Plan be noted. 
 

96  
  

BUSINESS RATES POOLING  
 
The Chief Finance Officer submitted a report to seek approval in principle 
to the Council joining a Derbyshire based Business Rates Pool in 
2015/16.   
 
A range of the benefits of pooling were outlined and a summary of the 
finance model proposed for a Derbyshire pool was appended to the 
report.  
 
A draft submission document which set out proposals for the governance 
arrangements, was also appended to the report. The final agreement to 
the submission document was still subject to the approval of other 
Councils in the proposed pool. Approval was therefore sought for the 
delegation of authority to the Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with 
the Leader, Deputy Leader and Chief Executive, to approve the final 
details of the scheme.  
 
* RESOLVED –  
 
(1) That it be recommended to Full Council that the Council joins a 

Business Rates Pool for Derbyshire in 2015/16. 
 

(2) That authority be delegated to the Chief Finance Officer, in 
consultation with the Leader, Deputy Leader and Chief Executive, 
to approve the final details of the scheme. 
 

REASON FOR DECISIONS 
 
To take advantage of a low risk opportunity to increase the Council’s 
share of Business Rate income in 2015/16. 
 
 

Page 2



CABINET 07.10.14 

3 
 
 

97  
  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as 
they contained information relating to individuals and financial and 
business affairs. 
 

98  
  

INNOVATION CENTRES DIGITAL CONNECTIVITY AND UPGRADE 
WORKS  
 

The Development and Growth Manager submitted a report 
recommending the approval of a proposal to deliver next generation 
digital connectivity and infrastructure to support the current and future 
business needs of the Council operated Innovation Centres. 
 
The proposal included a combined high-speed broadband and telephony 
service for Chesterfield Innovation Centres (CIC) located at Tapton Park 
Innovation Centre (TPIC) and Dunston Innovation Centre (DIC). Technical 
aspects of the proposal were details in the report.  
 
The alternative options of no upgrade or a more limited upgrade, were 
considered, however they were rejected as they would not facilitate the 
use of the innovation centres as they should be used, encouraging 
innovative and creative businesses and could have lead to a decrease in 
occupancy.  
 
*RESOLVED –  
 
(1) That it be recommended to Full Council that £203,790 be 

allocated from the Service Improvement Reserve to be repaid by 
the Innovation Centres over the next six years, to allow the 
Innovation Centres to undertake the programme of improvement 
works as proposed in this report. 
 

(2) That the Development and Growth Manager, in consultation with 
the Chief Finance Officer, be delegated authority to enter into 
new agreements to provide digital connectivity to the Innovation 
Centres. 

Page 3



CABINET 07.10.14 

4 
 
 

(3) That authority be delegated to the Development and Growth 
Manager to commence detailed negotiations, and to the 
Contracts Solicitor to prepare agreements, relating to the works 
and charges for the infrastructure works. 
  

REASON FOR DECISIONS 
 
To support the current and future business needs of the Council’s 
Innovation Centres and to support the attraction and development of 
innovative and knowledge based organisations to contribute to the growth 
of Chesterfield’s economy. 
 

99  
  

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS FOR STANDARDS 
MATTERS  
 
The Monitoring Officer submitted a report to inform members about the 
recruitment process for Independent Persons, who are consulted during 
the councillor complaints process, and to seek approval for these 
appointments.  
 
The applicants were interviewed by the Monitoring Officer and the Chair 
of the Standards and Audit Committee and both were recommended for 
appointment as Independent Persons. The Standards and Audit 
Committee considered this report on 26 September 2014 and the 
recommendations were approved (Minute 15 (2014/15)).  
 
Alternative options considered included only appointing one Independent 
Person or the recruitment of additional Independent Persons. It was 
agreed that appointing more than one Independent Person would help 
prevent potential conflicts arising. Further recruitment would be 
considered again in the future if necessary.  
 
* RESOLVED –  
 

That it be recommended to Full Council that those applicants 
recommended by the Chair of Standards and Audit Committee and 
Monitoring Officer be appointed as Independent Persons for the purpose 
of being consulted and giving their views on complaints about councillors. 
 
REASON FOR DECISION 
 

To enable the Council to operate the ethical standards system effectively 
and as required by the law. 

Page 4



CHESTERFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL FORWARD PLAN 
FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2014 TO 28 FEBRUARY 2015 

 
This is formal notice under The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 of 
key decisions to be made on behalf of the Council. As far as possible and in the interests of transparency, the Council will seek to provide at 
least 28 clear days notice of new key decisions (and many new non-key decisions) that are listed on this document. Where this is not practicable, 
such key decisions will be taken under urgency procedures. Decisions which are expected to be taken in private (at a meeting of the Cabinet or 
by an individual Cabinet Member) are marked "private". 

 
This Forward Plan sets out the details of the ‘key’ and other major decisions which the Council expects to take during the next four month period.  
The Plan is rolled forward every month and is available to the public 28 days before the beginning of each month.  
 
A ‘Key’ Decision is defined as: 
 
Any executive decision which is likely to result in the Council incurring significant expenditure or the making of savings where there is: 

 a decision to spend £50,000 or more from an approved budget, or 
 a decision to vire more than £10,000 from one budget to another, or 
 a decision which would result in a saving of £10,000 or more to any budget head, or 
 a decision to dispose or acquire any interest in land or buildings with a value of £50,000 or more, or 
 a decision to propose the closure of, or reduction by more than ten (10) percent in the level of service (for example in terms of 

funding, staffing or hours of operation) provided from any facility from which Council services are supplied. 
 

Any executive decision which will have a significant impact in environmental, physical, social or economic terms on communities living or working 
in one or more electoral wards. This includes any plans or strategies which are not within the meaning of the Council’s Policy Framework set out 
in Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
The law and the Council’s Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though they have not been included in the Forward 
Plan in accordance with Rule 15 (General Exception) and Rule 16 (Special Urgency) of the Access to information Procedure Rules. 
 

The Forward Plan has been extended to now include details of any significant issues to be considered by the Executive Cabinet, full Council and 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. It is hoped that this will better meet the needs of elected Members, Officers and the public. They are called 
“non key decisions”.  In addition the plan contains details of any reports which are to be taken in the private section of an Executive meeting. 
 
Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters in the schedule below may do so by contacting the officer listed. Copies of the 
Council’s Constitution and agenda and minutes for all meeting of the Council may be accessed on the Council’s website:  www.chesterfield.gov.uk. 

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4

http://www.chesterfieldbc.gov.uk/


Notice of Intention to Conduct Business in Private 
 
Whilst the majority of the business at Cabinet meetings will be open to the public and media to attend, there will inevitably be some business to 
be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information. This is formal notice under The Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 that the Cabinet meetings shown on this 
Forward Plan will be held partly in private because some of the reports for the meeting will contain either confidential information or exempt 
information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) and that the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it. 
 
A list of the reports which are expected to be considered at this meeting in private are set out in a list on this Forward Plan. They are marked 
"private", including a number indicating the reason why the decision will be taken in private under the categories set out below: 
 
(1) information relating to any individual 
(2) information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
(3) information relating the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
(4) information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations 

matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority. 
(5) Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
(6) Information which reveals that the authority proposes (a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are 

imposed on a person; or (b) to make an order or direction under any enactment. 
(7) Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
 
If you would like to make representations about any particular decision to be conducted in private at this meeting then please email: 
democratic.services@chesterfield.gov.uk. Such representations must be received in advance of 5 clear working days before the date Cabinet 
meeting itself, normally by the preceding Monday.  The Council is required to consider any representations received as to why an item should not 
be taken in private and to publish its decision. 
 
It is possible that other private reports may be added at shorter notice to the agenda for the Cabinet meeting or for a Cabinet Member decision.  
 
Cabinet meetings are held at the Town Hall, Chesterfield, S40 1LP, usually starting at 10.30 am on Tuesdays, but 
subject to change in accordance with legal notice periods. 
 
 
Huw Bowen 
Chief Executive 
 
 

P
age 6



Meeting dates 2014/15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

To view the dates for other meetings please click here.  

Cabinet  Council 

 
21 October 2014 

15 October 2014 

4 November 2014 
18 November 2014 

 

2 December 2014 
16 December 2014 

17 December 2014 

13 January 2015 
27 January 2015 

 

10 February 2015 
24 February 2015 

26 February 2015 

10 March 2015 
24 March 2015 

 

7 April 2015 
21 April 2015 

 

5 May 2015 18 May 2015 
20 May 2015 

P
age 7

http://chesterfield.moderngov.co.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1


 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key Decisions 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
296 

Careline 
Consortium 
- Update on the 
current position 
regarding 
potential 
partnership 
arrangements 
with DCC. 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

4 Nov 2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meeting. Report of 
Service 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Julie McGrogan 
Tel: 01246 345135 
julie.mcgrogan@ches
terfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
3 
information 
relating to 
financial 
and 
business 
affairs 

Key 
Decision 
 
321 

Review of 
Allocations Policy 
- Welfare Reform 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

13 Jan 
2015 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of 
Service 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Julie McGrogan 
Tel: 01246 345135 
julie.mcgrogan@ches
terfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
3 
Informatio
n in 
relation to 
financial or 
business 
affairs 

Key 
Decision 
 
329 

Local Plan: Sites 
and Boundaries 
Development Plan 
document 
- to agree 
preferred options 
for public 
consultation. 
 

Cabinet 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

18 Nov 
2014 
 

 Meetings Report of 
Strategic 
Planning and 
Key Sites 
Manager 
 

Alan Morey 
Tel: 01246 345371 
alan.morey@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 8



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
337 

THI Scheme 
Project Evaluation 
- to receive a final 
evaluation of the 
THI project for 
Chesterfield Town 
Centre. 
 

Cabinet 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

18 Nov 
2014 
 

 Meetings Report of 
Development 
Management 
and 
Conservation 
Manager 
 

Paul Staniforth 
Tel: 01246 345781 
paul.staniforth@ches
terfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
339 

Proposals for 
future use of the 
former garage site 
of Hady Lane 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

2 Dec 2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings. Report of 
Business 
Planning and 
Strategy 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Alison Craig 
Housing Tel: 01246 
345156 
alison.craig@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
340 

Caravan and 
Mobile Home 
Park Licensing 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

10 Feb 
2015 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings. Report of 
Business 
Planning and 
Strategy 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Jane Thomas 
jane.thomas@cheste
rfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
389 

Staveley Area 
Action Plan 
 

Cabinet 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

18 Nov 
2014 
 

 Meetings Report of 
Strategic 
Planning and 
Key Sites 
Manager 
 

Alan Morey 
Tel: 01246 345371 
alan.morey@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 9



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
395 

Review of fees 
and charges for 
the Venues, 
including the 
Winding Wheel, 
Pomegranate 
Theatre, Hasland 
Village Hall and 
the Market Hall 
Assembly Rooms 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Leisure, 
Culture and 
Tourism 

21 Oct 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of 
Cultural and 
Visitor Services 
Manager 
 

Anthony Radford 
Tel: 01246 345339 
anthony.radford@che
sterfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
398 

Sale of CBC 
Land/Property 
 

Deputy 
Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Planning 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

31 Oct 
2014 
 

 Meeting. Report of Head 
of Kier 
 

Matthew Sorby 
Tel: 01246 345800 
matthew.sorby@ches
terfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
3 
Contains 
financial 
information 

Key 
Decision 
 
402 

Treasury 
Management 
Report for 
2013/14 
 

Council 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

15 Oct 
2014 
 

Standards 
and Audit 
Committee  
Cabinet 

Meeting Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Helen Fox 
Tel: 01246 345452 
helen.fox@chesterfiel
d.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
410 

Report of Stock 
Condition Survey 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

4 Nov 2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of 
Business 
Planning and 
Strategy 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Alison Craig 
Housing Tel: 01246 
345156 
alison.craig@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 10



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
420 

Adoption of 
Revised 
Statement of 
Community 
Involvement 
 

Cabinet 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

4 Nov 2014 
 

 Meeting Report of 
Strategic 
Planning and 
Key Sites 
Manager 
 

Louise Briggs 
Tel: 01246 345794 
louise.briggs@cheste
rfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
426 

Community 
Engagement 
Strategy 
 

Council 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Customers 
and 
Communities 

15 Oct 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member for 
Customers 
and 
Communities 

Meeting Report of Policy 
Manager 
 

Katy Marshall 
Tel: 01246 345247 
katy.marshall@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
427 

Playing Pitch and 
Outdoor Sports 
Strategy 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Leisure, 
Culture and 
Tourism 

4 Nov 2014 
 

Executive 
Member – 
Environment, 
Assistant 
Executive 
Members, 
Scrutiny 
Project 
Group 

Meetings Report of Sports 
and Leisure 
Manager 
 

Mick Blythe 
Tel: 01246 345101 
mick.blythe@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
433 

Budget Monitoring 
for 2014/2015 and 
Updated Medium 
Term Financial 
Plan 
 

Council 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

15 Oct 
2014 
 

 Meeting. Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 11



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
434 

Housing Services 
Fire Management 
Policy 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

2 Dec 2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member for 
Housing 

Meeting. Report of the 
Business 
Planning and 
Strategy 
Manager- 
Housing 
Services 
 

Alison Craig 
Housing Tel: 01246 
345156 
alison.craig@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
436 

Derbyshire 
County Council's 
Consultation on 
Proposed Budget 
Cuts - Potential 
Impact on 
Housing Service 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

21 Oct 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member for 
Housing 

Meetings Report of 
Service 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Julie McGrogan 
Tel: 01246 345135 
julie.mcgrogan@ches
terfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
Information 
in relation to 
financial and 
business 
affairs. 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
437 

Review of the 
future of the 4 rest 
rooms that are 
currently closed - 
Sunny Croft, 
Rest-A-While, 
Welcome Centre 
and Golden Age 
Options for closed 
Community Rest 
Rooms.  
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Leisure, 
Culture and 
Tourism 

21 Oct 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member - 
Leisure, 
Culture and 
Tourism 
 

Meetings.  Report of 
Cultural and 
Visitor Services 
Manager 
 

Bernadette 
Wainwright 
Tel: 01246 345779 
bernadette.wainwrigh
t@chesterfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 12



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
438 

Six Month Review 
of PPP 
Performance 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Governance 
and 
Organisational 
Development 

4 Nov 2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of 
GP:GS 
Programme 
Manager 
 

John Moran 
Tel: 01246 345389 
john.moran@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
441 

Innovation 
Centres Digital 
Connectivity and 
Upgrade Works 
 

Council 
 

Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration 

15 Oct 
2014 
 

 Meetings Report of 
Development 
and Growth 
Manager 
 

Neil Johnson 
Tel: 01246 345241 
neil.johnson@chester
field.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
3 
Information 
in relation to 
financial and 
business 
affairs. 

Key 
Decision 
 
442 

To approve the 
Council's External 
Communications 
Strategy 
 

Council 
 

Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration 

17 Dec 
2014 
 

Overview 
and 
Performance 
Scrutiny 
Forum 
 

Meetings Report of 
Communications 
and Marketing 
Manager 
 

John Fern 
Tel: 01246 345245 
john.fern@chesterfiel
d.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
1 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
443 

Update on 
properties 
affected by 
subsidence at 
Westwood 
Avenue, 
Middlecroft 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

2 Dec 2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of 
Business 
Planning and 
Strategy 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Alison Craig 
Housing Tel: 01246 
345156 
alison.craig@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 13



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
444 

Housing Revenue 
Account Business 
Plan 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

2 Dec 2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of 
Business 
Planning and 
Strategy 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Alison Craig 
Housing Tel: 01246 
345156 
alison.craig@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
445 

Annual Housing 
Revenue Account 
Rent and Service 
Charge Increase 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

16 Dec 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of 
Business 
Planning and 
Strategy 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Alison Craig 
Housing Tel: 01246 
345156 
alison.craig@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
446 

Housing Capital 
Programme 
2015/16, 2016/17 
and 2017/18 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

27 Jan 
2015 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of 
Business 
Planning and 
Strategy 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Alison Craig 
Housing Tel: 01246 
345156 
alison.craig@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
447 

Innovation 
Support Project 
Post 2014 
 

Cabinet 
 

Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration 

4 Nov 2014 
 

 Meetings Report of 
Development 
and Growth 
Manager 
 

Neil Johnson 
Tel: 01246 345241 
neil.johnson@chester
field.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
1, 3 
Information 
relating to 
individuals, 
financial and 
business 
affairs. 

P
age 14



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
448 

Environmental 
Health Fees and 
Charges 2015/16 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Environment 

2 Dec 2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings. Report of 
Environmental 
Health Manager 
 

Russell Sinclair 
Tel: 01246 345397 
russell.sinclair@ches
terfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
449 

Trade Waste and 
Miscellaneous 
Fees and 
Charges 2015/16 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Environment 

27 Jan 
2015 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of Waste 
and Street 
Cleaning 
Manager 
 

Dave Bennett 
Tel: 01246 345122 
dave.bennett@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
3 
Information 
in relation to 
financial and 
business 
affairs. 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
450 

Review of 
Cemeteries Fees 
and Charges 
2015/16 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Environment 

27 Jan 
2015 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings. Report of 
Bereavement 
Services 
Manager 
 

Angela Dunn 
Bereavement 
Services Officer Tel: 
01246 345881 
angela.dunn@cheste
rfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
451 

Fees and 
Charges for 
Outdoor 
Recreation 
Provision 2015-16 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Environment 

2 Dec 2014 
 

Executive 
Member for 
Leisure, 
Culture and 
Tourism 
Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of 
Leisure and 
Amenities 
Manager 
 

Andy Pashley 
Tel: 01246 345099 
andy.pashley@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 15



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
452 

Fees and charges 
for Sport and 
Leisure (Indoor 
Facilities) 2015/16 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Leisure, 
Culture and 
Tourism 

2 Dec 2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of Sports 
and Leisure 
Manager 
 

Mick Blythe 
Tel: 01246 345101 
mick.blythe@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
453 

Chesterfield Open 
Market Fees and 
Charges 2015/16 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Leisure, 
Culture and 
Tourism 

27 Jan 
2015 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of Town 
Centre 
Operations 
Manager 
 

Andy Bond 
Tel: 01246 345991 
andy.bond@chesterfi
eld.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
454 

Budget Monitoring 
Report - Second 
Quarter of 
2014/15. 
 

Cabinet 
 
Council 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 
 
 

18 Nov 
2014 
 
17 Dec 
2014 
 

 Meetings Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
455 

Local Council Tax 
Support Scheme 
2015/16 
 

Cabinet 
 
Council 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Customers 
and 
Communities 
 
Executive 
Member - 
Customers 
and 
Communities 

18 Nov 
2014 
 
17 Dec 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
456 

Capital 
Programme 
Budget Monitoring 
 

Cabinet 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

16 Dec 
2014 
 

 Meetings. Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 16



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
457 

Overall First Draft 
Budget 
 

Cabinet 
 

Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration 

16 Dec 
2014 
 

 Meetings Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
458 

Leader and 
Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration 
Revenue Budget 
2014/15 - 2017/18 
 

Cabinet 
 

Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration 

16 Dec 
2014 
 

 Meetings Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
459 

Deputy Leader 
and Executive 
Member for 
Planning Revenue 
Budget 2014/15 -
2017/18 
 

Cabinet 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

16 Dec 
2014 
 

 Meetings Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
460 

Executive 
Member for 
Customers and 
Communities 
Revenue Budget 
2014/15 -2017/18 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Customers 
and 
Communities 

16 Dec 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
461 

Executive 
Member for 
Environment 
Revenue Budget 
2014/15 -2017/18 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Environment 

16 Dec 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 17



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
462 

Executive 
Member for 
Housing Revenue 
Budget 2014/15 -
2017/18 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

16 Dec 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
463 

Executive 
Member for 
Governance and 
Organisational 
Development 
Revenue Budget 
2014/15 -2017/18 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Governance 
and 
Organisational 
Development 

16 Dec 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
464 

Executive 
Member for 
Leisure, Culture 
and Tourism 
Revenue Budget 
2014/15 -2017/18 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Leisure, 
Culture and 
Tourism 

16 Dec 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meetings Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
465 

Business Rates 
Pooling 
 

Council 
 

Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration 

15 Oct 
2014 
 

 Meetings. Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 18



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
466 

Accountancy 
Service 
Restructure 
 

Joint Cabinet 
and 
Employment 
& General 
Committee 
 

Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Regeneration 

4 Nov 2014 
 

 Meeting Report of Head 
of Finance 
 

Barry Dawson 
Tel: 01246 345451 
barry.dawson@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
1, 3 
Relating to 
individuals 
and financial 
and 
business 
affairs 

Key 
Decision 
 
467 

Strategic Housing 
Acquisitions 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

27 Jan 
2015 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member  

Meeting   
 

James Crouch 
Tel: 01246 345150 
james.crouch@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
468 

HRA Revenue 
Budget 2014/15 to 
2019/20 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

27 Jan 
2015 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member  

Meeting   
 

Alison Craig 
Housing Tel: 01246 
345156 
alison.craig@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
469 

Housing Repairs 
Budget 2015/16 
 

Cabinet 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

27 Jan 
2015 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member  

Meeting   
 

Alison Craig 
Housing Tel: 01246 
345156 
alison.craig@chesterf
ield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 19



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

 

Private Items -Non Key/ Significant but non-Key 
 

Key 
Decision 
 
363 

Application for 
Home Repairs 
Assistance 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 
 

Executive 
Member 
Housing - 
Executive 
Member 
decisions 

31 Oct 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member 

Meeting Report of 
Business 
Planning and 
Strategy 
Manager - 
Housing 
Services 
 

Jane Thomas 
jane.thomas@cheste
rfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
1, 3 
Information 
relating to 
an individual 
Information 
relating to 
financial 
affairs 

Key 
Decision 
 
364 

Application for 
Waiver of Private 
Sector Housing 
Discretionary 
Decisions 
(including Home 
Repair Assistance 
and Disabled 
Facilities Grants) 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

31 Oct 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member - 
Housing 

Meeting Report of Local 
Government and 
Regulatory Law 
Manager 
 

Stephen Oliver 
Tel: 01246 345313 
stephen.oliver@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
1 
Contains 
information 
relating to 
an 
individual. 

Non-Key 
 
365 

Outstanding 
Debts for Write 
Off 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Customers 
and 
Communities 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Customers 
and 
Communities 

31 Jan 
2015 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member – 
Customers 
and 
Communities 

Meeting Report of 
Customer 
Centre Services 
Manager 
 

Maureen Madin 
Tel: 01246-345487 
maureen.madin@che
sterfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
3 
Information 
relating to 
financial or 
business 
affairs 

P
age 20



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Key 
Decision 
 
367 

Lease of 
Commercial and 
Industrial 
Properties 
 

Deputy 
Leader and 
Executive 
Member for 
Planning - 
Executive 
Member 
Decision 
 
Deputy 
Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Planning 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

31 Oct 
2014 
 

  Report of Kier 
Asset 
Management 
 

Christopher Oakes 
Tel: 01246 345346 
christopher.oakes@c
hesterfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
3 
Information 
relating to 
financial or 
business 
affairs 

Non-Key 
 
Non-Key 
368 

Appointment of 
Independent 
Persons for 
Standards Matters 
 

Council 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Governance 
and 
Organisational 
Development 

15 Oct 
2014 
 

Standards & 
Audit 
Committee 
Assistant 
Executive 
Member – 
Governance 
& 
Organisation
al 
Development 

Meetings Report of the 
Monitoring 
Officer 
 

Gerard Rogers 
Tel: 01246 345310 
gerard.rogers@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Exempt 
1 
Information 
relating to 
individuals 

Key 
Decision 
 
369 

Review of Licence 
and Registration 
fees (Gambling 
and Lotteries) 
2015/16 
 

Licensing 
Committee 
 

 12 Nov 
2014 
 

 Meetings Report of 
Licensing 
Manager 
 

Trevor Durham 
Tel: 01246 345203 
trevor.durham@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 21



 
Key 

Decision 
No 

Details of the 
Decision to be 

Taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest 
Date 

Decision 
can be 
Taken 

 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be considered 

by Decision 
taker 

Representations may 
be made to the 

following officer by 
the date stated 

Private 

Non-Key 
 
370 

Review of Taxi 
Licence and 
Registration fees 
2015/16 
 

Appeals and 
Regulatory 
Committee 
 

 12 Nov 
2014 
 

 Meeting   
 

Trevor Durham 
Tel: 01246 345203 
trevor.durham@chest
erfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Non Key Decision 
 

Non-Key 
 
Non Key 
24 

List of Buildings of 
Local Interest - to 
consider the list of 
nominated 
buildings and 
agree an 
assessment panel 
and process 
 

Deputy 
Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Planning 
 

Deputy Leader 
& Executive 
Member for 
Planning 

13 Jan 
2015 
 

Consultation 
with property 
owners 

Meeting Report of 
Development 
Management 
and 
Conservation 
Manager 
 

Paul Staniforth 
Tel: 01246 345781 
paul.staniforth@ches
terfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

Non-Key 
 
Non Key 
- 28 

Consideration of 
the report on the 
Annual Review of 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Arrangements 
2013/14 
 

Council 
 

Executive 
Member - 
Governance 
and 
Organisational 
Development 

15 Oct 
2014 
 

Assistant 
Executive 
Member for 
Governance 
and 
Organisation
al 
Development 
Overview 
and 
Performance 
Scrutiny 
Forum 

Meeting 
Email 

Report of Policy 
Manager 
 

Anita Cunningham 
Tel: 01246 345273 
anita.cunningham@c
hesterfield.gov.uk 
 

Public 
 
 

P
age 22



FOR PUBLICATION 
 

AGENDA ITEM  
COMMUNITY REST ROOMS REVIEW  

R320 
 

 
MEETING: 
 

 
1. CABINET 
2. EXECUTIVE MEMBER - LEADER 

 
 

DATE: 
 

1. 21ST OCTOBER 2014 
2. 13TH OCTOBER 2014 

 
REPORT BY: 
 

PROJECT ACADEMY OFFICER 
 

COMMUNITY 
ASSEMBLY: 
 

EAST 
 
 

KEY DECISION  
NUMBER 

437 

 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF PAPER 
 
1.1 To update Members on the rest rooms and how they are managed and 

financed. 
 
1.2 To agree on the future of the four rest rooms that are no longer used by 

the local community. 
 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Rest-a-While and Golden Age Rest Rooms should be put on the 

open market by Kier Asset Management.  
 

2.2 That the Welcome Centre should be appropriated into the Housing 
Revenue Account for conversion into a single storey dwelling, subject 
to an agreed valuation. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



2.3 That Sunnycroft Rest Room should be retained by the Council until the 
Council’s future requirements for recreational playing fields has been 
determined. 
 

2.4 That the five remaining rest rooms, which continue to operate under the 
direction of their respective Management Committees, are kept under 
review. 

 
 
3.0 BACKGROUND  
 
3.1 Within the Regeneration portfolio there are nine rest rooms: 
 

 Even Tide Rest Room, Cherry Tree Grove, Mastin Moor 

 Golden Age Rest Room, Middlecroft Road, Staveley 

 Manor Rest Room, 63 Manor Road, Brimington Common 

 New Haven Rest Room, 8 Station Road, Barrow Hill 

 Rest-a-While Rest Room, Staveley Road, Poolsbrook, Staveley 

 The Elders, Laburnam Street, Hollingwood  

 The Hollies, Sutton Crescent, Inkersall Green 

 Sunnycroft Rest Room, Lowgates, Staveley 

 Welcome Centre, 27 Duckmanton Road, Duckmanton 
 

A location map of these rest rooms is attached as Appendix A. 
 

3.2 These nine buildings were originally provided and managed by the 
former Staveley Urban District Council to serve as a dawn to dusk 
refuge for the elders of the mining communities.  Unlike the Housing 
Revenue Account community rooms, these rest rooms have no direct 
relationship with warden controlled residential premises and are 
available for use by the general public. 

 
3.3 The buildings were transferred to Chesterfield Borough Council in 1974 

as part of the local government reorganisation and their method of 
operation and use has continued to the present day.  No legal 
agreement or formal management arrangement exists between the 
Committees and the Council for any of the above nine properties.  A 
loose understanding of the role and responsibilities of the Committee 
has, however, developed over the years. 

 
3.4 They are all single storey buildings, each with a meeting room holding 

20-30 people, a small kitchen and toilets.  Originally each rest room had 
a Management Committee that organised a programme of community 

Page 24



activities and was responsible for the day to day operation of the 
building. 

 
3.5 The Council retains the responsibility for the maintenance, repairs and 

decoration of these buildings. It is also responsible for insuring the 
building against fire and theft.  It carries out fire risk assessments and 
asbestos surveys, and it tests firefighting equipment and the electrical 
installations and samples for legionella annually.  

 
3.6 The Management Committee owns and maintains all fixtures and 

fittings and is responsible for the testing of all portable electrical 
equipment. It arranges public liability insurance for the use of the 
building. It ensures that the building is kept secure at all times and 
complies with the Fire Risk Assessment, including ensuring that 
emergency escape route are kept clear, visual inspections of the fire 
fighting equipment are carried out and organise regular fire drills.  The 
Committee is also responsible for carrying out and recording regular 
legionella risk minimisation checks.  

 
 
4.0 CURRENT  SITUATION 
 
4.1 The role of the nine rest rooms has changed over the years and the 

importance that these facilities have in the local community is not as 
great as it used to be.  Generally the number of local residents using the 
facilities has declined but in some cases new Management Committees 
have resulted in new users being attracted to the rooms. 

 
 Even Tide Rest Room 
4.2 The Even Tide Rest Room has an active Management Committee 

which promotes the room as a community facility and is well used by a 
wide range of groups.  It is also used as a polling station. 
 
Golden Age Rest Room 

4.3 Because of declining numbers Golden Age Rest Room has closed.  
 

Manor Rest Room 
4.4 The Management Committee of the Manor Rest Room actively promote 

the rest room to the local community and have a number of regular 
users.  The centre is also used as a polling station.   
 
 
 
 

Page 25



New Haven Rest Room 
4.5 New Haven Rest Room organises bingo and dominoes sessions at 

least four times per week.  The room is let to a small number of regular 
hirers.  It is also used as a polling station. 

 
Rest- a- While Rest Room 

4.6 Rest- a- While is also closed due to a lack of community support.  
 
The Elders Rest Room 

4.7 The Elders Rest Room is used five days per week for bingo, dominoes 
and other social events. The rest room is also used as a polling station. 
 
The Hollies Rest Room 

4.8 The Hollies Rest Room is used at least two days per week for bingo and 
dominoes and for competitions one day per week in the summer.   
 
Sunnycroft Rest Room 

4.9 This rest room closed in 2013 because of falling numbers. 
 

Welcome Centre 
4.10 The Welcome Centre at Duckmanton closed a few years ago because 

of falling numbers and the inability of the remaining members to pay the 
utility bills associated with the building.  The rest room is still, however, 
used as a polling station. 
 

4.11 This report primarily deals with the four rest rooms that are no longer in 
use and have been closed due to lack of interest from the local 
community.  Although these buildings are empty they continue to incur 
maintenance costs for which the Council are responsible.   
 

4.12 However, the future of the remaining five rest rooms, which continue to 
operate under the direction of their respective Management 
Committees, will be kept under review.  Although these Committees 
have responsibility for the day to day management of the buildings, the 
Council retains the responsibility for both the maintenance and the 
overall health and safety of the buildings. 

 
 
5.0 PROPOSAL 
 
5.1 It currently costs the Council around £11,300 a year to maintain 

Golden Age, Rest- a- While, Sunnycroft and the Welcome Centre, in 
order to keep the buildings safe and to stop them falling into a state of 
disrepair.  Given the Council’s current financial situation, is 

Page 26



unsustainable and a decision on the future of these buildings is 
therefore required. 
 

5.2 The Council’s Housing Service has been consulted about their possible 
interest in converting these properties into housing. The only property 
that the Housing Revenue Account would be willing to appropriate 
from the General Fund is the Welcome Centre.  None of the other 
buildings are located in sites where there is an unmet demand for 
single storey housing. 
 

5.3 The Welcome Centre is attached to the Sheltered Housing Scheme in 
Duckmanton and lends itself to being converted into a two bedroomed, 
wheelchair accessible bungalow, of which there are none in the 
village. Given the Council’s ambition to increase the supply of 
affordable housing (and in particular to increase the Council’s own 
stock levels) it is proposed that this particular building is ‘appropriated’ 
into the Housing Revenue Account for conversion.  There will be 
revenue saving to the General Fund and the Housing Revenue 
Account will pick up the conversion costs.  The property would be 
retained as social housing in perpetuity. 

 
5.4 To the rear of the Sunnycroft Rest Room there is an area of Council 

owned land that could potentially be used for development. The only 
access to this land at present is via Sunny Croft so there is a concern 
that by selling the rest room at this stage the land to the rear of the 
building would become land locked and of little value. 
 

5.5 Leisure Services are currently developing a strategy which is 
reviewing the Council’s future requirements for recreational playing 
fields within the Borough.  The land at the rear of Sunnycroft is part of 
this review.  If the resultant strategy identifies that this land is surplus 
to requirements, there may be a possibility that the field could be 
developed.  It is therefore proposed that the Council should retain 
Sunnycroft Rest Room at present until all options of redeveloping the 
land at the rear of the building are exhausted.  If redevelopment of this 
land is identified as not possible then it is proposed that the rest room 
should be sold. 

 
5.6 Rest- a-While and Golden Age Rest Rooms were closed because of a 

lack of interest in managing the buildings and there is therefore no need 
for the services that they provide.  In addition the Council does not have 
any use for either of these buildings and they are surplus to 
requirements.  After consultation with Kier Asset Management it is 

Page 27



proposed that both these buildings should be placed on the open market 
for sale. 
 

5.7 It should be noted that both the Welcome Centre and Golden Age are 
used as polling stations.  The Democratic Services Manager has been 
consulted about the selling of these two buildings and has secured 
alternative venues for these polling stations.  

 
 
6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The Council incurred the following costs on the nine premises 

managed by Culture and Visitor Services in 2013/14: 
 Water Charges                              £69 
 Gas                                                £58 
 Electricity                                       £137 
 Fire Insurance                               £610 
 Premises Repairs  £28,020 
 Sewerage Charges                       £40      
 Internal Charges   £3,045 
 Capital Financial Costs                 £17,746 
 Total                                              £49,725 

 
6.2 As stated earlier in this report, it costs the Council to maintain the rest 

rooms whilst they are closed.  By selling Rest-a-While and Golden Age 
and appropriating the Welcome Centre to Housing Services, the Council 
would save approximately:  
 

 Welcome Centre Rest Room          £4,500 

 Rest-a-While Rest Room                £3,500 

 Golden Age Rest Room                  £3,300 

 Total                                              £11,300 

6.3 It is estimated that the buildings, which are proposed to be put on the 
open market, are valued at:  
 

 Rest-a-While Rest Room                £25,000 - £30,000 

 Golden Age Rest Room                 £25,000 - £30,000 

 Total                                               £50,000 - £60,000 

Page 28



These valuations are estimates and potentially could be higher once 
exposed to the open market. 

 
6.4 Appropriation of the Welcome Centre to the Housing Revenue 

Account for conversion would result in an adjustment to the General 
Fund of between £35,000 and £40,000. 
 

6.5 If all the recommendations made in this report are accepted, the Council 
could potentially benefit by between £96,300 to £111,300 - £50,000 to 
£60,000 in capital receipts, £11,300 saving from the General Fund and 
between £35,000 and £40,000 reduction in the General Fund debt by 
the appropriation of on the Welcome Centre to the Housing Revenue 
Account. 
 
 

7.0 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Description of 
Risk 

Likelihood Impact Mitigating Action Resultant 
Likelihood 

Resultant 
Impact 

Reputation of 
the Council 
could be 
damaged by 
selling the rest 
rooms. 

Low Low  No action to be 
taken as there are 
currently no 
community groups 
and a lack of 
interest from the 
community to re-
open these 
buildings 

Low  Low  

Selling Sunny 
croft Rest 
Room could 
result in land 
locking a 
potential 
development 
site. 

High  High  Recommend not to 
sell the land and 
carry out a 
separate 
review/product on 
Sunnycroft which 
will explore all 
options. 

Low  Low  

Failure to sell 
closed rest 
rooms will 
result in annual 
on-going costs 
to the Council. 

High  High  Sell the currently 
closed rest rooms 
for capital receipt 
which will result in 
a reduction in 
annual on-going 
costs. 

Low  Low  

Negative 
impact on the 
community 

Low  Low  No action to be 
taken as there are 
currently no 
community groups 
and a lack of 

Low  Low  

Page 29



interest from the 
community to re-
open these 
buildings 

 
 
8.0 EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 
8.1 A preliminary EIA has been carried out on the proposals for the four 

closed rooms and because there are no negative impacts on any of 
the equality groups, a full EIA is not necessary. 

 
9.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
9.1 The option of doing nothing was considered and disregarded as the 

Council would continue to incur on-going maintenance costs of 
approximately £15,000 per annum, which is not sustainable.  The 
buildings no longer provide a service to the members of the local 
community and they are surplus to the Council’ requirements. 
 

9.2 The Council could invest money to convert the properties for 
residential use, at an estimated cost of between £95,000 to £115,000.  
It could then the resale the properties at value of approximately 
£295,000.  The conversion costs are very high in this option and there 
is no guarantee that they could be sold sell for market value.  Because 
of the risks involved converting the properties is not considered a 
viable option.  
 

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That Rest-a-While and Golden Age Rest Rooms should be put on the 

open market by Kier Asset Management .  
 

10.2 That the Welcome Centre should be appropriated into the Housing 
Revenue Account for conversion into a single storey dwelling, subject 
to an agreed valuation. 

 
10.3 That Sunnycroft Rest Room should be retained by the Council until the 

Council’s future requirements for recreational playing fields has been 
determined. 
 

Page 30



10.4 That the five remaining rest rooms, which continue to operate under the 
direction of their respective Management Committees, are kept under 
review. 
 

11.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

11.1 These four rest rooms are no longer used or needed by the local 
community and they are surplus to the Council’s requirements.  
Maintaining the rooms, given the Council’s current financial situation, is 
unsustainable. The proposed course of action will potentially benefit the 
Council’s General Fund by between £96,300 and £131,300. 

 
 

Officer recommendation supported 
 

 
 
Signed      Executive Member 
 
Date 13.10.14 
 
Consultee Executive Member/Assistant Executive Member comments (if 
applicable)/declaration of interests 
 
 

You can get more information about this report from Bernadette Wainwright 
(5779) or James Wild (5902). 
 
 
 

Page 31



APPENDIX A 

P
age 32



  

AGENDA ITEM  
FOR PUBLICATION 

 CULTURAL VENUES FEES AND CHARGES 2015 
(T240)  

 

MEETING: 
 

1. CABINET 
 
2. EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR LEISURE 

CULTURE AND TOURISM 
 

DATE: 
 

1.   21st OCTOBER 2014 
 
2.  14th OCTOBER 2014 
 
 

REPORT BY: 
 
 

ARTS & VENUES MANAGER 

COMMUNITY   
ASSEMBLY: 
 

ALL 
 

KEY DECISION 
NUMBER: 

395 

 

 
FOR PUBLICATION 
 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To review the scale of charges for lettings at the Pomegranate 

Theatre, the Winding Wheel, the Assembly Rooms in the Market Hall 
and Hasland Village Hall for 2015. 

 
1.2 The report will not deal with any proposed changes to ticket prices, as 

these are negotiated with the visiting production companies 
throughout the year when productions are booked. 

 
1.3 The report will not deal with any proposed increase in bar and 

refreshment prices.  These prices are normally reviewed twice a year, 
and are set by the cost of the purchases, bar performance, VAT and 
what increases, if any, it is felt that the market can sustain.  Bar prices 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



  

were, however, reviewed in February 2014 to take account of the 
increase in supplier prices. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That officers work with local community groups to ensure that meeting 

spaces, appropriate to their needs, are available to them, whilst still 
making the most efficient use of the Council’s facilities. 
  

2.2 That the proposed changes to the pricing structure at the Council’s 
venues be deferred from 1st January 2015 until 1st  April 2015, to 
give hirers time to assess the impact of the proposed changes to the 
hire charges. 
 

2.3 That the building hire charges for the Pomegranate Theatre be 
increased from 1st April 2015 as follows: an average increase of 5%  
for charities and societies, 5% for dancing schools, and 5% for 
professional companies, as shown in Appendix A. 
 

2.4 That the Pomegranate Theatre Bar is no longer available to hire 
separately from the theatre itself. 

  
2.5 That an average increase of 5% be levied on all community room hire 

charges at the Winding Wheel from 1st April 2015 and an average 
increase of 3% be levied on all equipment hire charges at the Winding 
Wheel from 1st April 2015, as shown in Appendix B.  
 

2.6 That a minimum room hire charge of £150 for all rooms at the Winding 
Wheel is introduced as from 1st April 2015. 

 
2.7 That an average increase of 4% be levied on the hire fees for 

professional companies and commercial use at the Winding Wheel 
from 1st April 2015, as shown in Appendix C.  
 

2.8 That an average increase of 4% be levied on all day time room hire 
charges at the Assembly Rooms in the Market Hall from 1st April 2015, 
and new hire rates be introduced for the use of the meeting rooms 1 
and 2 during the evening and at other times when the Market Hall is 
not normally open, as shown in Appendix D. 

 
2.9 That an average increase of 4 % be levied on all current room hire 

charges at Hasland Village Hall from 1st April 2015, as shown in 
Appendix E. 

 
 

Page 34



  

3.0 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In 2013/14 the Pomegranate Theatre operated at a deficit of 

£219,005 (net controllable costs).  The Theatre earned £834,137 in 
income in 2013/4, the majority of which, £562,320, came from gross 
ticket sales, £126,344 from bar and other front of house sales and 
£91,587 through the hire of the Theatre. 
 

3.2 In the same financial year, the Winding Wheel operated at a deficit of 
£323,375 (net controllable costs).  It earned a total of £709,769 in 
income in 2013/14 of which £350,823 came from gross ticket sales, 
£194,187 from bar and other front of house sales and £100,335 from 
room lettings, and associated equipment hire  

 
3.3 In the same financial year, Hasland Village Hall operated at a deficit 

of £22,642 (net controllable costs).  It earned a total of £20,486 in 
income in 2013/14 of which £14,625 came from room lettings.  It 
should be noted that, due to the refurbishment of the Hall, it was 
only open for approximately 9 months of the year. 

 
3.4 In the same financial year, the Assembly Rooms operated at a deficit 

of £32,532 (net controllable costs).  It earned a total of £5,935 in 
income in 2013/14 of which £4,187 came from room lettings.  It 
should be noted that due to the refurbishment of the Assembly 
Rooms, they were only open for approximately 5 months of the 
year. 

 
3.5 The Council implemented an improvement programme for the 

Venues, following a review in 2011, the key aims of which were to 
integrate the operation of the Venues, improve the arts and cultural 
offer of the two theatres and reduce the overall subsidy to the Council 
tax payer.  A report was presented to Cabinet on 13th December 
2011, which identified that the existing community hire rates at both 
Venues did not adequately cover running costs.  It was estimated that 
community hire rates were approximately 25% too low at the 
Pomegranate Theatre and 12% too low at the Winding Wheel, to 
enable the costs of hire to be recovered.  Therefore, it was agreed to 
review and change the hire rates to reflect the actual costs incurred 
and to introduce new charges on a phased basis over the next three 
years – 2012, 2013 and 2014.  

 
This process was completed, and has contributed in part to the 
reductions in subsidy over the last two years, in 2012/3 and 2013/4. 
Savings in costs of £156,716 have been achieved compared to the 
2011/12 outturn. 

Page 35



  

 
3.6 During 2014/15 the net controllable costs of the service are budgeted 

to increase by approximately £74,000 compared to the 2013/14 
outturn.  The reason for this increase is due to the fact that both 
Venues will have closed for 10 weeks each during the financial year  
for the capital improvement programme funded by Arts Council 
England and the Council.  Whilst these “closure costs” have been 
taken into consideration for the Venues income and expenditure 
account for this financial year, approximately 66% of the costs are 
covered in the Arts Council England grant for the capital improvement 
programme. 

 
3.7   As part of the business transformation savings, the Venues need to 

reduce the subsidy by a further £110,000 in 2015/16 compared to the 
2013/14 outturn.  This requires a reduction in net controllable costs of 
approximately 20%, reducing the combined deficit (net controllable 
costs) to £432,000.  The deficit at the Pomegranate Theatre would be 
reduced to approximately £174,000 and at the Winding Wheel to 
approximately £258,000. 

 
3.8   During 2014, we have reviewed the specific income and costs of the 

various different events at the Venues, and it is clear that for some 
hires and Council promotions, the marginal costs of delivering the 
event exceed the income from the event.  

 
3.9 At the Winding Wheel, these marginal costs include the costs to light 

and heat the room, the time taken by the caretakers to set up and 
clear the room for an event, the costs of front of house staff and a 
duty manager for the safe operation of the building, and in some 
circumstances any technical staff required for the presentation of an 
event, and any marketing or box office costs.  For example many of 
the regular hirings of rooms for meetings by the local community 
groups do not cover the marginal costs.  In addition, these events do 
not generally have any other income attached to them such as bar or 
catering.  However, most of the Council promotions of productions do 
cover their marginal costs, often due to the fact that they have 
additional bar and catering income attached, and therefore contribute 
to the general overheads. 

 
3.10   At the Pomegranate Theatre, the situation is slightly different, as 

many of the hirings do cover the marginal costs, as the hire rates are 
for a minimum of 8 hours and have been increased over the last three 
years to realistic levels.  However, the rates for the rehearsal days are 
too low, and on these days there is no other income attached to them 
such as bar or catering.  The other issue at the Pomegranate Theatre 

Page 36



  

is that some of the Council promotions of productions do not cover the 
marginal costs, as many of the events have additional technical staff 
and marketing costs, this would include some of the drama and film 
events which have had relatively low attendances. 

 
3.11   At Hasland Village Hall and the Assembly Rooms, there is a similar 

situation to the Winding Wheel.  Many of the regular hirings of rooms 
for meetings by the local community groups do not cover the marginal 
costs.  In addition, these events do not generally have any other 
income attached to them such as bar or catering. 

 
3.12  By the end of November, the Visitor Information Centre will be 

established as the main hub for all bookings for Chesterfield 
Venues, and the central Box Office, and box office, administration 
and marketing staff, will have been relocated from the Pomegranate 
Theatre and Winding Wheel to the Visitor Information Centre.  This 
will enable us to only open the Venues to the public, when there is a 
commercially viable hire or promotion.  This change in programming 
policy will facilitate a review of the staffing structure of the Venues, 
and it is proposed that a further report be brought to Cabinet in 
November/December 2014 to outline the detailed proposals. 

 
4.0   CONSULTATION 
 
4.1  To gain a better insight into the proposals to increase the fees and 

charges for the cultural venues, two formal Focus Groups were 
arranged.  The first was with representatives of the existing hirers of 
the Venues, and the second was held with members of the general 
public who had expressed an interest in being involved in such an 
exercise.  

 
4.2  The Focus Groups met on 1st and 2nd September 2014 and were 

invited to explore the following five proposals: 
 

 4.2.1 Increase in fees and charges 
 
 4.2.2 Classification of hirers 
 

  4.2.3 Introduction of simplified charges 
 

4.2.4 Introduction of minimum charge for each venue hire  
 

4.2.5 Charging for the full cost of services provided 
 

Page 37



  

4.3  Whilst there was an acceptance and understanding of the Council’s 
financial position and the need to increase hire charges, there was 
no clear consensus on the various proposals outlined to the Focus 
Groups.  A detailed report on the findings of the Focus Groups is 
contained in Appendix F. 

 
4.4 Because of the lack of consensus on the proposals by the focus 

groups further time was required by officers to assess the findings. 
A way forward needed to be developed that would allow the Council 
to make more efficient use of its facilities but at the same time 
ensure that community groups are provided with an opportunity to 
hire rooms, appropriate to their needs, that are affordable. To 
facilitate this it is proposed that any changes to the pricing structure 
should be deferred from 1st January 2015 until 1st April 2015, to give 
hirers time to assess the impact of the proposed changes and make 
alternative arrangements, if necessary.   

 
5 .0   PROPOSED CHARGES FOR 2015 
  
5.1 The proposals detailed below take into account the wide variety of 

views expressed during the consultation process, and the Council’s 
need to reduce the Council’s overall subsidy for the Venues.  The 
increases proposed are higher than the rate of inflation, and as such 
contribute towards the reduction of the operational deficit of all of the 
Venues. 

 
 Hire Fees – Pomegranate 
  
5.2 When hiring the Pomegranate Theatre there are three different price 

categories, which are as follows: 
 

Group A Charities, amateur musical, drama societies and 
educational establishments. 

 
Group B  Dancing schools. 
 
Group C Professional companies and commercial use. 

 
There is no proposal to change the classification of hirers at the 
Pomegranate Theatre. 

 
5.3 It is proposed that hire fees at the Pomegranate Theatre are 

increased, as follows, in accordance with Appendix A: 
 
Group A are increased on average by approximately 5 %.  

Page 38



  

 
Group B are increased on average by approximately 5%.  
 
Group C are increased on average by 5%.  
 
It should be noted that the fees and charges listed in Appendix A do 
not include VAT.   
 

5.4 It is proposed that as from 1st April 2015 the Pomegranate Theatre 
Bar is not available to hire separately from the theatre as it is rarely 
available for hire due to events in the theatre itself, and when it is 
available, it is not economic to open up the theatre to hire out the bar 
on its own.  In addition, there are alternative rooms for hire better 
equipped such as the Function Room and the Ballroom at the 
Winding Wheel. 

 
  

5.5 It is suggested that the existing groups, associated with the 
Pomegranate Theatre, which are non-commercial in nature and use 
the Pomegranate Theatre Bar from time to time, such as Chesterfield 
Theatre Friends, and the Pomegranate Youth Theatre, are only able 
to use the bar in future when the theatre is already open, on a 
standby basis, and there are no other events programmed.  For 
events which need to be planned in advance, the groups will be 
offered rooms to hire in other Council Venues at the same rates as 
other local community groups. 

 
 Hire Fees – Winding Wheel 
             
5.6 The Winding Wheel has two main categories of hire fees.  Community 

charges, which apply to social gatherings and non profit making 
organisations, and commercial charges, which are levied on profit 
making events and organisations.  There is no proposal to change the 
classification of hirers at the Winding Wheel.  However, it is proposed 
that a minimum hire fee, for any Winding Wheel room booking, of 
£150 is introduced  from 1st April 2015  This will cover the marginal 
costs of opening the building and will apply to all hirers. 

 
5.7   In addition, it is proposed that all community room hire charges are 

increased on average by 5%.  The hirers at the Winding Wheel are 
also charged for additional equipment they may require, including 
seating, piano, staging, etc, which are subject to VAT.  It is proposed 
to increase equipment charges by 3%.  These proposed new charges 
are in accordance with Appendix B.  

 

Page 39



  

5.8  It is also proposed that from 1st April 2015 the standard rate of hire 
fees of the Winding Wheel for professional companies and 
commercial use is increased by 4%.  These are contained in 
Appendix C. 

 
 Hire Fees – Market Hall Assembly Rooms 

 
5.9 The Assembly Rooms, which are located within the Market Hall,   

reopened in November 2013. The Assembly Rooms has two main 
categories of hire fees.  Community charges, which apply to social 
gatherings and non profit making organisations, and commercial 
charges, which are levied on profit making events and organisations. 
There is no proposal to change the classification of hirers.  

 
5.10 It is proposed that the existing rates paid are increased by 4% as from 

1st April 2015.  However, it is proposed that new increased rates are 
introduced for the hire of the meeting rooms 1 and 2 during the 
evenings, when the Market Hall is not normally open and requires 
caretaking staff to visit and open the Market Hall and then set up the 
Assembly Rooms specifically for a hirer.  Additionally, it is proposed 
that the meeting rooms are not available at the discounted community 
rate at the weekends.  The proposed new hire rates for the Market 
Hall are contained in Appendix D. 

 
 Hire Fees – Hasland Village Hall 
 
5.11 The Hasland Village Hall has three main categories of hire fees.  

Community charges, which apply to social gatherings and non profit 
making organisations, community concessionary charges, which 
applies to children and senior citizen groups not receiving any other 
grant or concession and commercial charges, which are levied on 
profit making events and organisations.  There is no proposal to 
change the classification of hirers 

 
5.12 It is proposed that the rates paid are increased by 4% as from 1st April 

2015 in accordance with Appendix E.  
 
6.0  IMPACT ON EXISTING HIRERS 
 
6.1 In order to assess the impact of these proposals, we have calculated 

what some of the regular hires would have to pay given under the 
proposed charges.  Depending on the period, day, and time of the 
hire, different hirers have been affected differently.  

 

Page 40



  

6.2 At the Assembly Rooms, some of the local community groups which 
use meetings rooms 1 and 2 during the evenings would see 
significant increases in room charges.  In the light of this it is proposed 
that these groups be offered the opportunity to use the Hasland 
Village Hall meeting room as an alternative. 

 
6.3 At the Winding Wheel, a number of the local community groups would 

also see substantial increases due to the introduction of the newly 
proposed minimum charge.  If they were unable or unwilling to pay 
more for their use of the Winding Wheel, they would be offered the 
opportunity to use the meeting rooms at the Hasland Village Hall or 
Assembly Rooms. 

 
6.4 At the Pomegranate Theatre, it is anticipated that all hirers would see 

a modest increase.  Many would continue to present productions at 
the Pomegranate Theatre or alternatively at the Winding Wheel, as 
the groups are able to “pass on” the additional costs either to their 
members or their customers.  Existing community groups which use 
the Pomegranate Theatre Bar will be able to use the bar in future 
when the theatre is already open, on a standby basis, and there are 
no other events programmed. 

 
7.0  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 The main financial implication of the proposed increase in hire fees 

will be to reduce the amount of “loss making “hires, where it is costing 
the Council money to open up a building for hirers.  It is 
acknowledged that there may be a reduction in the number of hires 
overall, but it is hoped that this will enable the overhead costs of the 
Venues to be reduced.  The full impact of these changes will be seen 
in the forthcoming review of the staffing structure of the Venues, 
which will be brought to Cabinet in November / December 2014. 

  
7.2 In 2013/14 the income from hire fees for the Pomegranate Theatre 

was £91,557.  The original budget for 2014/15 is £65,400.  This figure 
is less than last year due to the ten weeks closure due to 
refurbishment. However, the budget for 2015/16 will be increased pro 
rata. 

   
7.3 In 2013/14 the income from hire fees for the Winding Wheel was 

£92,343.  However, the target income for 2013/14 from hire fees for 
the Winding Wheel is £61,950.  This figure is less than last year due 
to the ten weeks closure due to refurbishment.  However the budget 
for 2015/16 will be increased pro rata. 

 

Page 41



  

7.4  In 2013/14 the income from hire fees for Hasland Village Hall was 
approximately £14,625.  The budget for 2014/15 is £16,380.  

 
7.5  In 2013/14 the income from hire fees for Market Hall Assembly 

Rooms was £4,187 for approximately 5 months of trading.  The 
budget for the full year 2014/15 is £12,600. 

 
8.0  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
8.1 In the current economic climate, the entertainment, leisure and 

business markets are under pressure.  There is also increasing local 
competition in this area including newer venues such as the Casa 
Hotel and the Proact Stadium.  It is, therefore, inevitable that the 
risks in attaining the income targets are increasing. 

 

Description of 
the Risk 

Impact Likelihood Mitigating 
Action 

Decreased 
number of 
community 
group hirers 

Medium Medium Offer 
alternative 
venues to 
these hirers 
 

Increased 
competition 

High Medium Improved 
marketing 
capacity and 
activity 

Reputational 
damage to the 
Council 

Medium Medium Consultation 
taken place, 
alternative 
rooms 
available 

 
 
9.0  EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 
 
9.1 The Council has agreed both a Venues Programming Policy and an 

Arts and Culture Strategy.  These documents identify, in more 
detail, the impact that these proposed price increases will have on 
the various equalities groups and an action plan to militate against 
any negative impact will be developed.  The Equality Impact 
Assessments are available from the Policy Service.      

  
 
 
 

Page 42



  

 
10.0  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS TO BE CONSIDERED  
 
10.1 An alternative option would be to introduce a significantly greater 

hire charges than those increases proposed for the Pomegranate 
Theatre, the Winding Wheel and Hasland Village Hall, and the 
Assembly Rooms.  However, this would risk putting off potential 
hirers, especially charities and local amateur and community 
groups.  

 
10.2  Given the increasing competition and current economic situation, an 

alternative option would be not to increase hire charges.  However, 
all Venues operate at a considerable deficit and in order to develop 
a sustainable business plan, charges for these services have to 
increase. 

 
11.0  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 That officers work with local community groups to ensure that meeting 

spaces, appropriate to their needs, are available to them, whilst still 
making the most efficient use of the Council’s facilities. 

  
11.2 That the proposed changes to the pricing structure at the Council’s 

Venues be deferred from 1st January 2015 until 1st April 2015, to 
give hirers time to assess the impact of the proposed changes to the 
hire charges. 

 
11.3  That the building hire charges for the Pomegranate Theatre be 

increased from 1st April 2015 as follows: an average increase of 5%  
for charities and societies, 5% for dancing schools, and 5% for 
professional companies, as shown in Appendix A. 

 
11.4  That the Pomegranate Theatre Bar is no longer available to hire 

separately from the theatre itself. 
 

11.5  That an average increase of 5% be levied on all community room hire 
charges at the Winding Wheel from 1st April 2015 and an average 
increase of 3% be levied on all equipment hire charges at the Winding 
Wheel from 1st April 2015, as shown in Appendix B.  

 
11.6   That a minimum room hire charge of £150 for all rooms at the 

Winding Wheel is introduced as from 1st April 2015. 
  

Page 43



  

11.7   That an average increase of 4% be levied on the hire fees for 
professional companies and commercial use at the Winding Wheel 
from 1st April 2015, as shown in Appendix C.  

 
11.8   That an average increase of 4% be levied on all day time room hire 

charges at the Assembly Rooms in the Market Hall from 1st April 
2015, and new hire rates be introduced for the use of the meeting 
rooms 1 and 2 during the evening and at other times when the Market 
Hall is not normally open, as shown in Appendix D. 

 
11.9   That an average increase of 4 % be levied on all current room hire 

charges at Hasland Village Hall from 1st April 2015, as shown in 
Appendix E. 

 
12.0  REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
12.1 To make further progress towards a sustainable financial position 

for the Venues. 
 
 
You can get more information about this report from Anthony Radford  
(Tel: 01246 345339) 
 
 
 
 

 
Officer recommendation supported. 
 

 
Signed      Executive Member 
 
Date 13.10.14 
 
Consultee Executive Member/Support Member comments  
(if applicable)/declaration of interests 
  

 

 

Page 44



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Pomegranate Theatre Hire Charges 

Charities, Amateur Musical, Drama Societies and Educational Establishments 

 

C
o

re
 

H
o

u
rs

 

C
h

a
rg

e
 

fo
r 

u
p

 t
o

 8
 

h
o

u
rs

 

N
e

w
 P

ri
c
e
 

 F
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 

e
x
tr

a
 h

o
u

r 

o
r 

p
a

rt
 

th
e

re
o

f 

N
e

w
 P

ri
c
e
 

 H
o

u
rs

 

b
e

fo
re

 o
r 

a
ft

e
r 

c
o

re
 

h
o

u
rs

 

N
e

w
 P

ri
c
e
 

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n

c
e
 

N
e

w
 P

ri
c
e
 

 

 

Monday 9am-10pm £416 £440  £52.00 £55.00  £78 £82.50      

Tuesday 9am-10pm £416 £440  £52.00 £55.00  £78 £82.50      

Wednesday 9am-10pm £416 £440  £52.00 £55.00  £78 £82.50      

Thursday 9am-10pm £416 £440  £52.00 £55.00  £78 £82.50      

Friday 9am-10pm £568 £600  £71.00 £75.00  £107 £112.50      

Saturday 9am-10pm £568 £600  £71.00 £75.00  £107 £112.50      

Sunday 9.30am-
5.30pm 

£704 £740      £185.00      

Bank Holiday 9.30am-
5.30pm 

£704 £740      £185.00      

 Performance              

Monday 9am-10pm £832 £880  £104.00 £110.00  £156.00 £165.00  £182 £192   

Tuesday 9am-10pm £832 £880  £104.00 £110.00  £156.00 £165.00  £182 £192   

Wednesday 9am-10pm £832 £880  £104.00 £110.00  £156.00 £165.00  £182 £192   

Thursday 9am-10pm £1,144 £1,200  £143.00 £150.00  £214.50 £225.00  £182 £192   

Friday 9am-10pm £1,144 £1,200  £143.00 £150.00  £214.50 £225.00  £182 £192   

Saturday 9am-10pm £1,144 £1,200  £143.00 £150.00  £214.50 £225.00  £243 £255   

Sunday 9.30am-
10pm 

£1,408 £1,480  £176.00 £185.00  £352.00 £370.00  £243 £255   

Bank Holiday 9.30am-
10pm 

£1,408 £1,480  £176.00 £185.00  £352.00 £370.00  £243 £255   

               

               
Terms: The Hirer shall pay the minimum hire fee as calculated from these charges or 25% of Box Office takings whichever is the greater + VAT. (N.B. 60% of all building hire charges 
are subject to VAT) 

N.B. Any additional hours, as described in the list of Hire Charges and any additional technical requirements to be mutually agreed and recharged to the Visiting Manager. 

 

Pomegranate Theatre Hire Charges 

Dancing Schools  

 

  C
o
re

 H
o

u
rs

 

   C
h
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 

u
p

 t
o

 8
 

h
o

u
rs

 

N
e
w

 P
ri

c
e
 

 F
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 

e
x
tr

a
 h

o
u

r 

o
r 

p
a

rt
 

th
e

re
o

f 

N
e
w

 P
ri

c
e
 

 H
o
u

rs
 

b
e

fo
re

 o
r 

a
ft

e
r 

c
o

re
 

h
o

u
rs

 

N
e
w

 P
ri

c
e
 

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

N
e
w

 P
ri

c
e
 

%
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 

 

Monday 9am-10pm £444 £470  £55.50 £58.75  £83.00 £88.00      

Tuesday 9am-10pm £444 £470  £55.50 £58.75  £83.00 £88.00      

Wednesday 9am-10pm £444 £470  £55.50 £58.75  £83.00 £88.00      

Thursday 9am-10pm £444 £470  £55.50 £58.75  £83.00 £88.00      

Friday 9am-10pm £608 £640  £76.00 £80.00  £114.00 £120.00      

Saturday 9am-10pm £608 £640  £76.00 £80.00  £114.00 £120.00      

Sunday 9.30am-
5.30pm 

£750 £790      £197.50      

APPENDIX A 

P
age 45



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bank Holiday 9.30am-
5.30pm 

£750 £790      £197.50     

 Performance             

Monday 9am-10pm £888 £940  £111.00 £117.50  £166.50 £176.25  £194 £204  

Tuesday 9am-10pm £888 £940  £111.00 £117.50  £166.50 £176.25  £194 £204  

Wednesday 9am-10pm £888 £940  £111.00 £117.50  £166.50 £176.25  £194 £204  

Thursday 9am-10pm £1,216 £1,280  £152.00 £160.00  £228.00 £240.00  £194 £204  

Friday 9am-10pm £1,216 £1,280  £152.00 £160.00  £228.00 £240.00  £194 £204  

Saturday 9am-10pm £1,216 £1,280  £152.00 £160.00  £228.00 £240.00  £258 £272  

Sunday 9.30am-
5.30pm 

£1,500 £1,550  £187.50 £193.75  £375.00 £387.50  £258 £272  

Bank Holiday 9.30am-
5.30pm 

£1,500 £1,550  £187.50 £193.75  £375.00 £387.50  £258 £272  

              

 
Terms: The Hirer shall pay the minimum hire fee as calculated from these charges or 25% of Box Office takings whichever is the greater + VAT. (N.B. 60% of all building hire charges 
are subject to VAT) 

N.B. Any additional hours, as described in the list of Hire Charges and any additional technical requirements to be mutually agreed and recharged to the Visiting Manager. 

 

Pomegranate Theatre Hire Charges 

Professional Companies and Commercial Use 

 

  C
o
re

 H
o

u
rs

 

   C
h
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 

u
p

 t
o

 8
 h

o
u

rs
 

N
e
w

 P
ri

c
e
 

 F
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 

e
x
tr

a
 h

o
u

r 
o

r 

p
a

rt
 t

h
e

re
o

f 

N
e
w

 P
ri

c
e
 

 H
o
u

rs
 b

e
fo

re
 

o
r 

a
ft

e
r 

c
o

re
 

h
o

u
rs

 

N
e
w

 P
ri

c
e
 

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 

N
e
w

 P
ri

c
e
 

 

Monday 9am-10pm £688 £720  £86.00 £90.00  £129.00 £135.00     

Tuesday 9am-10pm £688 £720  £86.00 £90.00  £129.00 £135.00     

Wednesday 9am-10pm £688 £720  £86.00 £90.00  £129.00 £135.00     

Thursday 9am-10pm £1,000 £1,050  £125.00 £131.25  £187.50 £197.00     

Friday 9am-10pm £1,000 £1,050  £125.00 £131.25  £187.50 £197.00     

Saturday 9am-10pm £1,376 £1,450  £172.00 £181.25  £258.00 £272.00     

Sunday 9.30am-

5.30pm 

£1,376 £1,450 

     £362.50  

   

Bank Holiday 9.30am-

5.30pm 

£1,376 £1,450 

     £362.50  

   

 Performance             

Monday 9am-10pm £1,376 £1,450  £172.00 £181.25  £258.00 £272.00  £249 £262  

Tuesday 9am-10pm £1,376 £1,450  £172.00 £181.25  £258.00 £272.00  £249 £262  

Wednesday 9am-10pm £1,376 £1,450  £172.00 £181.25  £258.00 £272.00  £249 £262  

Thursday 9am-10pm £2,000 £2,100  £250.00 £262.50  £375.00 £394.00  £315 £330  

Friday 9am-10pm £2,000 £2,100  £250.00 £262.50  £375.00 £394.00  £315 £330  

Saturday 9am-10pm £2,752 £2,900  £344.00 £362.50  £516.00 £544.00  £375 £395  

Sunday 9.30am-10pm £2,752 £2,900  £344.00 £362.50  £516.00 £544.00  £375 £395  

Bank Holiday 9.30am-10pm £2,752 £2,900  £344.00 £362.50  £516.00 £544.00  £375 £395  

              

Terms:  60% of all building hire charges are subject to VAT 

P
age 46



  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N.B. Any additional hours, as described in the list of Hire Charges and any additional technical requirements to be mutually agreed and recharged to the Visiting Manager. 

 

Pomegranate Theatre Bar 

All bookings are subject to a minimum of two 
hours booking  

  
 

  
    

 

 

 
 

Existing 
Price 

New Price  
 

  
    

 

Theatre Bar COMMUNITY CHARGE             

Monday - Thursday  per hr Pre 5pm  £  20.30            

 After 5pm  £  28.00            

Friday - Saturday per hr Pre 5pm  £  34.00            

 After 5pm  £  37.80            

COMMUNITY BLOCK BOOKING 
DISCOUNT    

  
 

  
    

 

Monday - Friday per hr Pre 5pm  £  16.50            

 After 5pm  £  22.00            

COMMERCIAL             

Monday - Thursday per hr Pre 5pm  £  41.00            

 After 5pm  £  55.30            

Friday - Saturday per hr Pre 5pm  £  68.40            

 After 5pm  £  82.70            

COMMERCIAL BLOCK BOOKING 
DISCOUNT    

  
 

  
    

 

Monday - Thursday per hr Pre 5pm  £  32.70            

 After 5pm  £  43.90            

Friday - Saturday per hr Pre 5pm  £  54.60            

 After 5pm  £  68.20            

Sunday Rates as per weekend rates 
plus £40 per letting   

  
 

  
    

 

Bank Holiday by negotiation at 
double rates   

  
 

  
    

 

P
age 47



  

 

 

Venues FEES & CHARGES     

      

Winding Wheel Fees & Charges    

All bookings are subject to a minimum of three hours booking (excluding kitchens) 

or £150 in hire charges whichever is the greater        

         

WINDING WHEEL - AUDITORIUM   Current   New       

COMMUNITY CHARGE    £        

Mon-Thurs Per hour Pre 5pm  £   37.00   £     39.00       

 After 5pm  £     61.00   £     64.00       

Friday - Saturday Pre 5pm  £     51.00   £     54.00       

 After 5pm  £     77.00   £     80.00       

Balcony (min 3hrs) Hourly rate:  £     12.50   £     13.00       

AUDITORIUM COMMUNITY BLOCK 
BOOKING DISCOUNT 

        

Monday - Friday  Pre 5pm  £     29.50   £     31.00       

 After 5pm  £     49.00   £     51.00       

Kitchen per hour   £       5.00   £       5.00       

Servery per function   £       9.50   £     10.00       

AUDITORIUM COMMERCIAL CHARGE          

Mon-Thurs Per hr Pre 5pm  £     76.00   £     80.00       

 After 5pm  £   125.00   £   130.00       

Friday - Saturday  Pre 5pm  £   104.00   £   110.00       

 After 5pm  £   156.00   £   160.00       

Balcony (min 3hrs) Hourly rate:  £     25.00   £     26.00       

Kitchen per hour   £       9.50   £     10.00       

Servery per function   £     15.50   £     16.00       

AUDITORIUM COMMERCIAL BLOCK 
BOOKING DISCOUNT 

        

Mon-Thurs Per hour Pre 5pm  £     60.00   £     64.00       

 After 5pm  £     98.00   £   104.00       

Fri - Sat (min 3hrs) Pre 5pm  £     82.00   £     88.00       

 After 5pm  £   127.00   £   128.00       

Kitchen per hour   £       7.50   £       8.00       

Servery per function   £     13.50   £     14.00       

BALLROOM COMMUNITY CHARGE          

Mon-Thurs Per hour Pre 5pm  £     28.40   £     30.00       

 After 5pm  £     33.60   £     35.00       

Friday - Saturday Pre 5pm  £     42.00   £     44.00       

 After 5pm  £     48.00   £     50.00       

Kitchen per hour   £       6.00   £       6.30       

Servery per function   £     11.50   £     12.00       

BALLROOM COMMUNITY BLOCK BOOKING 
DISCOUNT   

        

Monday - Friday Pre 5pm  £     22.00   £     24.00       

 After 5pm  £     26.50   £     28.00       

Kitchen per hour   £       5.00   £       5.00       

Servery per function   £       9.50   £     10.00       

         

        APPENDIX B 

Page 48



  

BALLROOM COMMERCIAL           

Mon-Thurs Per hour Pre 5pm  £     57.00   £     60.00       

 After 5pm  £     67.60   £     70.00       

Friday - Saturday  Pre 5pm  £     85.00   £     90.00       

 After 5pm  £     98.00   £   100.00       

Kitchen per hour   £       9.50   £     10.00       

Servery per function   £     15.50   £     16.00       

COMMERCIAL BLOCK BOOKING DISCOUNT          

Mon- Thurs Pre 5pm  £     46.50   £     48.00       

 After 5pm  £     54.50   £     56.00       

Friday - Saturday Pre 5pm  £     67.20   £     72.00       

 After 5pm  £     76.70   £     80.00       

FUNCTION ROOM COMMUNITY CHARGE          

Monday - Thursday  Pre 5pm  £     20.50   £     21.00       

 After 5pm  £     28.00   £     30.00       

Friday - Saturday  Pre 5pm  £     34.00   £     36.00       

 After 5pm  £     38.00   £     40.00       

COMMUNITY BLOCK BOOKING DISCOUNT          

Monday - Friday  Pre 5pm  £     16.50   £     17.00       

 After 5pm  £     22.00   £     24.00       

COMMERCIAL         

Monday - Thursday Pre 5pm  £     41.00   £     43.00       

 After 5pm  £     55.50   £     58.00       

Friday - Saturday  Pre 5pm  £     68.50   £     72.00       

 After 5pm  £     83.00   £     85.00       

COMMERCIAL BLOCK BOOKING DISCOUNT          

Monday - Thursday  Pre 5pm  £     33.00   £     34.00       

 After 5pm  £     44.00   £     46.00       

Friday - Saturday  Pre 5pm  £     54.50   £     57.00       

 After 5pm  £     68.00   £     69.00       

Sunday Rates as per weekend rates plus £40 
per letting 

        

Bank Holiday by negotiation at double rates  Average       

         

Large event discount for a booking of all 
rooms  

        

at  the Winding Wheel for more than one day on consecutive 
days 

20%  No 
change 

   

EQUIPMENT  Current New      

Staging 8' x 4' (per unit)   £       6.10   £       7.00       

Tiered Staging (per unit)   £     48.50   £     50.00       

PA system in-house or portable   £     21.50   £     22.00       

PA system in-house  with radio mike   £     31.50   £     32.00       

Additional microphone   £     10.00   £     10.00       

         

Overhead Projector   £     16.00   £     16.00       

Laptop   £     24.00   £     24.00       

Multimedia Projector and  Screen   £     52.50   £     55.00       

Multimedia Projector, Screen and Laptop   £     70.00   £     70.00       

Slide Projector   £     17.00   £     18.00       

Page 49



  

Screens - 6ft   £     16.00   £     17.00       

Screens - 10ft   £     51.50   £     52.00       

Screen - 8ft rear projection   £     42.00   £     43.00       

Lectern   £       7.00   £       7.00       

Flip Chart and Pad   £       7.00   £       7.00       

Additional Set Lighting   £     31.50   £     32.00       

Conditional hire of lighting/sound system   £   147.00   £   150.00       

         

Technician - per hour   £     24.00   £     24.00       

         

Piano - Upright   £     16.00   £     17.00       

Grand Piano    £   250.00       

Seating over 200    £     30.50   £     35.00       

Seating over 300    £     47.00   £     50.00       

Seating over 400    £     92.00   £   100.00       

Tiered Seating   NA   £   100.00       

         

Carpet for Staging/Catwalk   £     16.00   £     17.00       

         

Ticket Printing   £     49.00   £     50.00       

Licence Extension   £     25.00   £     25.00       

Round Tables - New Charge   £     44.00   £     45.00       

Cup and Saucers - 1-50   £     10.50   £     11.00       

Cup and Saucers - 51-100   £     16.00   £     17.00       

Cup and Saucers - 101-150   £     24.00   £     25.00       

Cup and Saucers - 151-300   £     31.50   £     32.00       

Tea and Coffee (per cup)   £       1.30   £       1.30       

Tea and Coffee (per mug)   £       1.50   £       1.50       

Tea/Coffee and Biscuits (per cup)   £       1.60   £       1.60       

Tea/Coffee and Biscuits (per mug)   £       1.90   £       1.90       

CORKAGE (including use of glasses)   £       9.00   £       9.00       

Refundable Deposit   £   100.00   £   100.00       

         

         

Resources Block Booking Discount  
( 10 or more bookings per annum) 

 20%  No 
change 

   

         

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES    New 
Price  

      

         

Lecture Programme         

 Full Rate  £       6.50   £       6.80       

 Concessionary  £       4.95   £       5.20       

         

         

Tuesday Evening Dance   £       5.10   £       5.40       

         

  Average       

Page 50



  

 

 

 

Winding Wheel Theatre Hire 
Charges 

                      

Professional Companies and Commercial Use              

               

 C
o
re

 h
o

u
rs

  

C
h
a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

u
p
 t
o
 e

ig
h
t 

h
o
u
rs

 

 New 
Price  

 

F
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 e

x
tr

a
 h

o
u
r 

o
r 

p
a
rt

 t
h

e
re

o
f 

 

 New 
Price  

 

H
o
u
rs

 b
e
fo

re
 o

r 
a
ft
e
r 

c
o
re

 h
o
u
rs

  

 New 
Price  

 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 

 New 
Price  

 

               

 Performance              

Monday 9am-11pm £1,900 £2,000  £237.50 £250.00  £356.25 £375.00  £950.00 £1,000   

Tuesday 9am-11pm £1,900 £2,000  £237.50 £250.00  £356.25 £375.00  £950.00 £1,000   

Wednesday 9am-11pm £1,900 £2,000  £237.50 £250.00  £356.25 £375.00  £950.00 £1,000   

Thursday 9am-11pm £2,000 £2,100  £250.00 £262.50  £375.00 £393.75  £1,000.00 £1,050   

Friday 9am-11pm £2,000 £2,100  £250.00 £262.50  £375.00 £393.75  £1,000.00 £1,050   

Saturday 9am-11pm £2,000 £2,100  £250.00 £262.50  £375.00 £393.75  £1,000.00 £1,050   

Sunday 9.30am-
11pm 

£2,752 £2,800  £344.00 £350.00  £516.00 £525.00  £1,376.00 £1,400   

Bank Holiday 9.30am-
11pm 

£2,752 £2,800  £344.00 £350.00  £516.00 £525.00  £1,376.00 £1,400   

               

    

N.B. Any additional hours, as described in the list of Hire Charges and any additional technical requirements to be mutually agreed and recharged to the 
Visiting Manager. 

   

             APPENDIX C 

P
age 51



  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MARKET HALL ASSEMBLY ROOMS Hourly charge   

COMMUNITY CHARGE      

 Current New   

     

COMMUNITY   £ £   

MAIN HALL     

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) Pre 5pm 23.00 24.00   

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) After 5pm 28.00 29.00   

Fri- Sun (min 3hrs) Pre 5pm 32.00 33.00   

Fri - Sun (min 3hrs) After 5pm 39.50 41.00   

Kitchen (per hour) 6.00 6.00   

     

ROOM 1     

Monday - Thursday (min 2hrs) pre 5pm 6.00 6.30   

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) post 5pm NA 16.00   

Fri (min 2 hrs) pre 5pm 8.50 8.80   

Fri (min 3hrs) post 5pm NA 21.00   

Sat and Sun (min 3 hrs)  8.50 NA   

     

     

ROOM 2     

Monday - Thursday (min 2hrs) pre 5pm 4.50 4.70   

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) post 5pm NA 15.00   

Fri (min 2 hrs) pre 5pm 8.00 8.40   

Fri (min 3hrs) post 5pm NA 20.00   

Sat and Sun (min 3 hrs)  8.00 NA   

     

     

     

     

COMMUNITY BLOCK BOOKING 
DISCOUNT  

    

MAIN HALL     

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) Pre 5pm 18.50 19.20   

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) After 5pm 22.50 23.20   

     

     

Kitchen (per hour) 5.00 5.00   

     

ROOM 1     

Monday - Thursday (min 2hrs) before 
5pm 

5.00 5.20   

     

ROOM 2     

Monday - Thursday (min 2hrs) before 
5pm 

4.00 4.20   

     

     

          APPENDIX  D 

Page 52



  

COMMERCIAL £    

MAIN HALL     

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) Pre 5pm 34.50 36.00   

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) After 5pm 41.00 43.00   

Fri- Sun (min 3hrs) Pre 5pm 46.00 48.00   

Fri - Sun (min 3hrs) After 5pm 57.00 59.50   

Kitchen (per hour) 9.50 10.00   

     

ROOM 1     

Monday - Thursday (min 2hrs) pre 5pm 9.50 10.00   

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) post 5pm NA 24.00   

Fri (min 2 hrs) pre 5pm 14.50 15.00   

Fri (min 3hrs) post 5pm NA 31.50   

Sat and Sun (min 3 hrs)  NA 31.50   

     

ROOM 2  0.00   

Monday - Thursday (min 2hrs) 6.50 7.00   

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) post 5pm NA 23.00   

Fri (min 2 hrs) pre 5pm 11.50 12.00   

Fri (min 3hrs) post 5pm NA 30.00   

Sat and Sun (min 3 hrs)  NA 30.00   

     

     

 

MAIN HALL     

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) Pre 5pm 31.00 32.00   

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs) After 5pm 36.50 38.00   

Fri- Sun (min 3hrs) Pre 5pm 40.50 42.50   

Fri - Sun (min 3hrs) After 5pm 50.00 52.50   

Kitchen (per hour) 7.50 7.50   

     

ROOM 1     

Monday - Thursday (min 2hrs) pre 5pm 9.00 9.00   

Fri- Sun (min 2 hrs)  12.00 NA   

ROOM 2     

Monday - Thursday (min 2hrs) Pre 5pm 6.00 6.30   

Fri- Sun (min 2 hrs)  10.00 NA   

     

Sunday Rates as per weekend rates 
plus £20 

Average    

     

Bank Holiday by negotiation at double 
rates 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



  

 

 
 
 

Venues FEES & CHARGES 

 

     

HASLAND VILLAGE HALL  Hourly charge   

      

  Current   New     

MAIN HALL COMMUNITY CHARGE       

Monday - Friday (min 3 hrs) 13.00 13.60    

Saturday (min 3hrs) 15.00 15.70    

Kitchen/Bar per function   6.50   6.80    

COMMUNITY BLOCK BOOKING DISCOUNT       

MAIN HALL      

Monday - Friday (min 3 hrs) 10.50 11.00    

Kitchen/Bar per function   6.00   6.30    

  

MAIN HALL      

Monday - Friday (min 3hrs) 10.00 10.50    

Saturday 11.50 12.00    

Kitchen/Bar per function   6.00   6.30    

COMMUNITY CONCESSIONARY BLOCK BOOKING 
DISCOUNT  

     

MAIN HALL      

Monday - Friday (min 3hrs)   7.50   7.80    

Kitchen/Bar per function   5.50   5.70    

COMMERCIAL       

Monday - Friday (min 3hrs) 27.00 28.00    

Saturday (min 3hrs) 30.00 31.50    

Kitchen/Bar per function 14.50 15.20    

COMMERCIAL BLOCK BOOKING DISCOUNT       

Monday - Friday (min 3hrs) 21.50 22.50    

Saturday (min 3 hrs) 24.50 25.70    

Kitchen/Bar per function 11.50 12.00    

COMMUNITY CHARGE       

ANCILLARY ROOM      

Monday - Friday (min 3 hrs)   5.00   5.20    

Saturday (min 3 hrs)   5.00   5.20    

Kitchen/Bar per function   6.50   6.80    

COMMUNITY BLOCK BOOKING DISCOUNT       

ANCILLARY ROOM      

Monday - Friday (min 3hrs)   4.50   4.70    

COMMERCIAL CHARGE       

ANCILLARY ROOM      

Monday - Friday (min 3hrs)   9.50   9.90    

Saturday (min 3hrs)   9.50   9.90    

COMMERCIAL BLOCK BOOKING DISCOUNT       

ANCILLARY ROOM      

Monday - Thursday (min 3hrs)   7.50   7.80    

Saturday ( min 3hrs)   7.50   7.80    

      

Sunday Rates as per weekend rates plus £20 Average     

Bank Holiday by negotiation at double rates      

      

                APPENDIX E 

Page 54



  

 

 
  Venues Fees and Charges Consultation  
 

1.1 To gain a better insight into the proposals to increase the fees and charges for 
the cultural venues, two formal Focus Groups were arranged. The first was with 
some of the existing hirers of the Venues, and the second was held with 
members of the general public who had expressed an interest in being involved 
in such an exercise.  
 

1.2 The Focus Groups met on 1st and 2nd September 2014 and were invited to   
explore the following four proposals: 

 
1.2.1 Increase in fees and charges 

 
Following a detailed analysis of costs and income for a wide variety of 
events it is proposed that many of the fees and charges are increased 
compared to 2014 levels. 

  
In many instances the current hire rates do not cover the actual running 
costs of opening up the individual venues for the periods they are used. For 
example these costs might include the cost of staff to attend the venue to 
open/close the venue up and prepare it  for the hire activity, such as 
arranging chairs and tables, and then to be present at the venue for health, 
safety and security of the hirers. These costs would also include the costs of 
heating and lighting the venue for the period of hire. 

 
The proposal is that basic hire rate should wherever possible enable the 
Council to recover these costs. 

 
In addition to these costs, each venue has significant overheads. This 
includes staffing costs, premises costs (including significant maintenance 
costs, cleaning and utilities), supplies and services  
(including administration, equipment, and general marketing). 

 
The proposal is that the commercial hire rate should wherever possible 
enable the Council to recover these overhead costs as well as the running 
costs.  

 
1.2.2 Classification of hirers 

 
 Currently hirers have been classified into three main groups:  

 
 Community Rate 

 

       APPENDIX F 

Page 55



  

This rate includes charities, amateur societies, schools and colleges, not for 
profit associations, public services (for example NHS or Local Authorities), 
and private individuals. 
Dance School Rate 
 
This applies to Pomegranate Theatre only  
 
Commercial Rate 
 
This applies to all companies or organisations which are commercial in 
nature. 
 
As the subsidies for the Venues are paid for primarily by local residents, it is 
proposed that these classifications change and be updated as follows: 

 
a) Registered charities based in Chesterfield Borough 
b) Not for profit associations based in Chesterfield Borough 
c) Private Individuals based in Chesterfield Borough 
d) Private dancing schools based in Chesterfield Borough 
 e) Other (including all commercial companies and professional groups and 

all others not based in Chesterfield Borough) 
 

It is proposed that instead of publishing multiple rates, that only one rate is 
quoted, but that some of the groups are given a discount on this rate.  

 
For example, for illustrative purposes only, the proposed discounts might 
be as follows: 

 
 e) Other – No discount 

 d) Private dancing schools – 20% discount 
 c) Private Individuals – 25% discount 
 b) Not for profit – 40% discount 
 a) Registered charities – 50% discount 
 

1.2.3  Introduction of simplified charges 
 

Some of our customers have fed back to us that our fees and charges are 
very complicated and difficult to understand and there are multiple elements 
of charging.  
 
It is proposed that where possible packages for pricing will be produced to 
simplify charges. 
 
As each hire activity has different basic staffing and equipment 
requirements, it is proposed that different packages are offered for different 
activities.  For example, the list below is for some of the activities at the 
Winding Wheel: 

Page 56



  

              

     

 

 

 

1.2.4   Introduction of minimum charge for each venue hire 
 

Whilst there are currently minimum periods of hire, for example 3 hours at 
the Winding Wheel or 2 hours for the meeting rooms at the Assembly 
Rooms, we do not currently have a minimum hire cost. These minimum hire 
periods do not equate to sufficient income to cover the running costs.  

 
For example, we have a regular evening booking in one of the meeting 
rooms at the Assembly Rooms, which generates £8 in hire income. This is a 
2 hour meeting and is the only event in the building.  

 
Therefore we are proposing to introduce a minimum hire cost as follows: 

 
Winding Wheel – meeting - £150 
Pomegranate Theatre – meeting - £150 
Hasland Village Hall – meeting - £60 
Assembly Rooms – meeting - £80 

 
These costs have been calculated to cover the minimum staffing and utility 
costs for opening up the individual venues for the periods they are used.  

 
The introduction of some of these charges may lead to increased charges 
for some of the regular hirers 

 
1.2.5 Charging for the full cost of services provided 

 
It has become clear that, historically, we have not always charged for all 
elements of the services provided, particularly at the Winding Wheel.  

 
This might include charges for additional front of house staff, duty 
managers, security staff and technical staff. Additional staff are often 
required for the Council to operate the venues in accordance with the 
requirements of its Premises License, or Health and Safety Legislation. 

 
The impact of this is that in these cases, the hire income from the event is 
significantly less than the actual running costs of opening up the venue for 
the hire.  

 
It is proposed that all such costs are in future re-charged to hirers in full. The 
introduction of some of these charges may lead to increased charges for 
some of the regular hirers. 

 
 

 

Page 57



  

 

 

 

 
Venues Hire Fees and Charges Focus Groups Notes (September 2014) 
 
Attendance - A total of 47 people were engaged in the process including existing hirers and members of the 
public. 
 
Attendance was incentivised - those who attended received two complimentary tickets to a half week or full 
week long production at the Pomegranate Theatre or the Winding Wheel (to be used before the end of 
December 2014, subject to a maximum total ticket value of £40). 
 
Introduction 
 
Anthony Radford welcomed participants and gave an introduction to Venues, and background information 
about the current arrangements for venue hire and the five proposals to be discussed. Each participant 
received an information pack with further details (Appendix 1)   
Participants worked in small groups (supported by facilitators) and discussed five proposals for venues hire 
in terms of pros, cons, queries and alternatives.  The groups discussed each option in turn for 10 minutes, 
swapping worksheets so that they can see the other group’s notes. 
 
 

 

Summary of key discussion themes 
 
General comments and comments about increasing charges  

 Across both the hirers and general public focus groups, there was an acceptance and understanding of 
the financial position and the need to increase hire charges.  

 There was a common concern across all focus groups, that the simplified charges, minimum charge and 
full cost options would have a disproportionate negative impact on those who require a basic, low cost, 
small meeting room for a straightforward meeting, and that the proposals do not meet this need /demand.  

 There was a feeling amongst the general public groups that the Council should be ensuring that the 
appropriate rooms are being hired for each activity.  

 In relation to introducing the rise in charges, there were a number of suggestions from both the general 
public and hirers that there could be a ‘grandfather’ approach to allow a buffer for existing hirers, while 
new hirers would be introduced at the higher rate.   

 There was a common suggestion that the Council could do much more to market the Venues, and a 
request that this is the topic of an additional focus group. It was suggested in the general public sessions 
that the Council should be doing more to promote the Venues to the commercial market.  

 
Classification of hirers 

 On the whole, it was felt that some sort of classification of hirers is a good principle. 

 In relation to classification of hirers – there was a general feeling from both the hirers and general public 
representatives that larger national charities should not be given the same discount as smaller, local 
charities that directly benefit people in Chesterfield.   However, there were mixed views about the 
proposed classification of hirers in terms of level of discount and definition, and the number of categories. 
During the general public discussions, it was suggested that dance schools should be treated as a 
commercial business.  One of the general public focus group resolved that there should only be two 
classifications: community (local charity and not for profit), and commercial (everyone else).  

 There was a feeling amongst the hirer groups that the venues shouldn’t be prioritising commercial hirers 
over community hirers, however, the opposite was felt by a number of people in the general public 
discussions.   

 
Simplified charges 

 Both the hirers and general public focus groups stressed the importance of making sure that charges and 
any changes are transparent.   

 It was felt that the current charging structures are unclear and complicated, and that the packages might 
go some way towards addressing this.  

Page 58



  

 A number of the groups discussed options for add-ons to packages. One of the general public discussion 
groups felt that free or discounted parking should be included in a package, while another group 
discussed catering packages.  

 
Minimum charge 

 It was felt that the current charging structures are unclear and complicated, and that this proposal might 
go some way towards addressing this.  

 Concern was raised in the hirers groups that the minimum charge might be too high.  
 
Charging full cost 

 It was felt that this was a good direction to strive towards but that the cost would exclude ‘community 
hirers’.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



  

 

Focus group activity full notes  

 

The following tables include the comments made about each option at the focus groups, and any comments raised via correspondence in relation to the focus groups.  
Comments from existing hirers and the general public have been kept separate. 

 

Increase fees and charges 
 

Comments from hirers focus group  

Pros Cons Queries / comments Alternatives / amendments 

 This option is good from the point 
of view of the rate-payer, as users 
are paying for the usage.  

 We accept that the fees have to 
go up – we just don’t want it to go 
up too much.   

 We accept the financial situation. 

 Groups are already looking at the 
competition and moving to other 
venues.  This will get worse if the 
fees increase a lot.  (all 3 groups 
made this comment) 

 One organisation in the focus group 
has already decided not to book with 
Winding Wheel this year anticipating 
a 10% increase. 

 Two organisations are already using 
raffles to reach the hire fee.  

 This might push people out of the 
theatre – it should be a community 
theatre.  

 Community groups are having to put 
the price of tickets up and people are 
refusing to go – the groups are really 
struggling to maintain themselves.  

 You may struggle more than you do 
now, and have empty venues. 

 Community groups get sidelined for 
more lucrative commercial bookings.  

 What kind of covenants are on 
these buildings? Are they for 
community use? 

 Can we bring in our own 
‘techies’ to do the lighting etc?  

 

 Film rock concerts – use the 
Assembly rooms as more than a 
meeting space.   

 Other organisations are running 
their venues like a partnership, 
rather than a business.  

 

P
age 60



  

 

 
Increase fees and charges 

 

Comments from general public  

Pros Cons Queries / comments Alternatives / amendments 

 This will reduce the subsidy from 
the tax payer 

 People do expect a yearly 
increase. 

 The rates are currently very low. 

 The charge should be moved up 
to the market rate. 

 Not all of the rooms are the same 
–some are more expensive to 
open up. 

 Historically, the rates have been 
too low. 

 People would expect to pay 
double at the lower end of the 
rates.  

 The charges are currently so low, 
they probably put some people off 
– gives the impression the 
venues aren’t very good.  

 If people can afford to pay more, 
they should. 

 I would be very against any move 
to increase any tariffs or anything 
that may reduce the appeal of the 
venues. These are key venues. 

 Risk of reputational damage 

 There is a risk of losing hirer – 
particularly smaller groups, but 
there is definitely room for an 
increase.  

 The charges need to be simpler 
so you can publish it and market 
the venues better. 

 There is a risk of reputational 
damage if people think they are 
paying for the improvements to 
the Venues.  

 Some groups might stop meeting 
which will be detrimental to the 
community.  

 Surprised at the low cost – value 
for money. 

 Has a loyalty scheme been 
considered? 

 I would like to know why isn't the 
Council running efficiently as 
possible before deciding to put up 
admission charges? 

 Why doesn't the Council tell the 
public how managers, officers, 
supervisors, directors, heads of 
departments and other admin 
staff there are in each department 
and how many departments there 
are and how much money this 
costs the Tax Payer each year? 

 How much profit does each of the 
Car Parks make each year and 
why doesn't this profit be used to 
make sure entrance fees are kept 
down so all parts of society can 
enter winding wheel etc? 

 How can the Council be sure that 
increasing admission costs 
means more persons will want to 
go to that venue?  

 Why doesn't the Council ensure 
its Staff are working as efficiently 
as possible first to save money 
before talking about increase 
admission charges? 

 We should be asking people to 
use the most appropriate venue 
for their use.  

 There needs to be a step change.  

 We need to use all of the venues 
to market all of the other venues. 

 We need to increase the usage. 

 Promotion is key. 

 New people pay the new rates, 
then have a buffer for existing 
hirers, introducing the rise over 
the next few years.  

 You need to consider where the 
charges are starting from.   

 

P
age 61



  

 
 
 

 

 
Classification of hirers 

 

Comments from hirers focus group  

Pros Cons Queries / comments Alternatives / amendments 

 We like the idea of different rates 
for Chesterfield based groups – 
this is fairer for residents. 

 Like the structured approach – it 
makes sense. 

 This is straightforward – apart 
from the boundary issue where 
groups might have a base outside 
the Borough, but have 
Chesterfield users.  

 Agreed for commercial users (two 
groups said this) 

 It’s not fair that private dance 
schools have to pay higher than 
not for profit orgs – they bring lots 
of children into the theatres.  

 This excludes groups, charities 
etc outside the Borough. 

 Any increase is a concern – 
community groups don’t like to 
increase prices.  

 Needs clarification – ‘not for profit’ 
could have a very broad definition 
especially non-registered 
charities and friends of groups. 

 

 Is there a distinction between 
registered and unregistered 
charities? 

 What sort of fees do national 
charities and large organisations 
like the NHS get in other Council 
areas – needs researching?  

 Does the address of the 
registered charity have to be in 
the Borough? 

 The commercial use is very low at 
the venues – this needs 
increasing.   

 Dancing schools should be 
categorised at private individuals 
and receive 25% discount.  

 Could you factor in some 
discretion for those groups that 
are based outside the Borough, 
but have a large proportion of 
Chesterfield residents as 
members/users? Eg.  Dance 
School based in Clay Cross but 
has a lot of Chesterfield children 
in the school.  

 Can you charge more for the 
larger, commercial shows?  

 There is not enough effort to 
promote and market activities – 
advertising is difficult.  

 For small charities, 50% discount 
seems fine, but this seems 
generous for larger charities.  

 What about giving ‘not for profit / 
voluntary organisations’ the same 
discount as charities? 

 Have you considered a loyalty 
discount? 

P
age 62



  

 
Classification of hirers 

 

Comments from  general public 

Pros Cons Queries / comments Alternatives / amendments 

 This is a good approach in 
terms of community benefit. 

 Subsidising dance schools 
does increase use of the 
theatre. 

 Good principle. 

 Good principle, but having 5 
categories is too much, and will 
create anomalies.  

 Does it take into account 
regular hirers?  Should there be 
a regular booking discount? 

 There is a negative impact on 
smaller communities.  

 Dance schools should not 
receive the discount. 

 Who checks who should be on the 
community rate? 

 There needs to be an assurance 
process to make sure people are 
receiving the community rate 
legitimately. 

 Is there a loyalty scheme? 

 The current mix of usage is not 
right – need more commercial 
bookings.  

 ‘Not for profit’ classification needs 
clarifying. 

 What is the definition of ‘in the 
Borough’?  Needs to consider who 
attends/benefits from the activity.  

 Why do dance schools get treated 
differently to businesses? 

 Charities discount should only apply to 
local charities – not the nationals. 
(both groups said this) 

 There should be different 
classifications for types of charities 

 The current discounts are excessive. 

 There is a need to consider 
seasonal/different days – you want 
people to book on quiet days – offer 
them incentives. 

 The classification is too simple – eg. 
NHS should get a reduced rate for 
blood donation, but not corporate 
management meetings. 

 Group 2 had the following 
amendments to the categories: 
o Regarding charities – only local 

charities should get the discount – 
not the larger national charities. 

o Regarding ‘not for profit’ – again, 
these need to be local.  

o Regarding ‘private individuals’ –
these should not get a discount  

o Dance schools should not get 
discount 

 Group 2 concluded that there should 
be 2 classifications – community and 
commercial, with community including 
local charities and not for profit 
organisations that benefit Chesterfield. 

 Commercial hirers should be paying 
more than 100% of the cost so that 
you make a profit.   

P
age 63



  

 

 
 
 
 

 
Simplified charges 

 

Comments from hirers focus group  

Pros Cons Queries / comments Alternatives / amendments 

 For the theatre, a package makes 
sense.  

 Add-ons and hidden costs are 
confusing – this is better. 

 Currently, we cannot budget 
properly because we have no 
idea how much we will have to 
pay for a booking until the bill 
comes afterwards. (2 groups said 
this) 

 Simplified would work because of 
the included equipment. 

 There could be benefits to this for 
large groups  

 Less administration, easier to 
plan for.  

 Good principle, but fees seem 
very high, particularly for small 
groups.  

 Transparent 

 Currently, we only pay for the 
meeting time, rather than the set 
up and clear up time.  

 If there is a package price, 
everyone pays the same, 
including the professionals.  

 Concerned that charging more for 
commercial use mean that 
amateur groups will miss out 
because they are less lucrative 
bookings? 

 We could not afford double the 
fees we are paying now – you’ll 
lose the groups that have been 
supporting you for years.  

 This will cost a lot more for small 
groups who will go elsewhere - 
there are lots of cheap places you 
can hire a room in Chesterfield  - 
eg £6/hr at library. 

 As a larger group (200), we feel 
we are being ‘held over a barrel’ 
because we are limited to venues 
with larger capacity.  

 Do you have to pay the same 
price for different rooms?   

 How does this work if you are 
using more than one room?  

 It is expensive when you consider 
the rehearsal cost as well as the 
performance cost. 

 Do packages include access to 
the kitchen?   

 Who gets access to the kitchen 
when you have two rooms in use 
that share the kitchen? 

 The cost needs to be transparent 
– including VAT? 

 Do people still have to pay full 
cost if they don’t use a room to its 
full capacity? 

 What about Sunday hire, for 
rehearsals etc? 

 

 We only need a small room – 
surely the price should be based 
on the number of people 
attending.  We don’t want or need 
to pay for 4 hours of hire.  

 Would prefer to stick to an hourly 
rate based on no’s – but what 
would this include? 

 You need to take account of the 
size – can I have the ballroom on 
a 20 person package? 

 The timing of the fee increase will 
cause problems for advanced 
bookings/programmes.  

 We will need to have a lot of 
warning before the fees change. 

 Can you stagger the proposals to 
reach the full cost model over the 
next 5 to 10 years? 

 Give some sort of discount to 
non-commercial users outside the 
Borough. 

P
age 64



  

 

 
Simplified charges 

 

Comments from general public  

Pros Cons Queries / comments Alternatives / amendments 

 Groups can budget better using 
the packages. 

 Simpler for the customer and for 
the Council’s administration. 

 We like this option – it’s good in 
principle.  

 People should know what they 
are going to pay up-front.  

 This is much more simple and 
marketable.  

 Like the package idea best of the 
options – it is clear and easy to 
understand.  

 This option might be a bit rigid for 
some people. 

 Don’t give too much away for free 
when you could be making 
money by ‘add-ons’ to the room 
hire.  

 Would there be packages for 
smaller hire periods and smaller 
rooms? 

 Will you negotiate with bookings 
that don’t fit into the packages? 

 Have been told we can’t hire the 
Pomegranate. 

 Can you charge the catering 
companies that come in? 

 Can groups use their own 
stewards etc? 

 Priority should be given to 
bookings that make money – eg 
weddings where people use the 
bar.  

 Can you make car parking 
discounted, or free, as part of the 
package? 

 Consider offering some catering 
packages, like North Wingfield.  

 Can you provide catering?  If so, 
there shouldn’t be an option to 
bring in outside caterers(not all 
agreed with this) 

 Can you offer a discount on the 
room hire if people use in-house 
catering? 

 Could you offer some marketing 
as part of the package – eg.  
advertise hirers events in Our 
Town etc. 

 Still have add-ons available for 
people to purchase on top of the 
packages.  

P
age 65



  

 

 

 
Minimum charge 

 

Comments from hirers focus group  

Pros Cons Queries / comments Alternatives / amendments 

 This could suit some groups – 
enables them to plan the day. 

 This could work for larger groups 
and would be easier to 
administrate. 

 Easier to work out the pricing. 

 Good idea, and much more 
understandable than current 
pricing .  Could be used in 
conjunction with the simplified 
charges – BUT, the proposed 
cost is too high. 

 Amalgamated on-costs.  

 Historical low cost room hires 
should be stopped. 

 Concerned about this proposal – 
would cost more for groups using 
a room for 1 hour eg. Zumba. 

 This will have a negative impact 
on smaller hirers in particular.  

 There is a lot of competition in 
Chesterfield for small room hire.  

 This is not affordable for a small 
meeting. 

 Price is too high 

 It isn’t very clear – which rooms 
do the estimate charges apply to? 

 There is a risk that there will be 
no market for meetings at this 
cost. 

 
 

 Hasland Village Hall – If two 
meetings going on at the same 
time, can they share the 
caretaking cost?  Would this 
reduce the minimum charge? 

 Would some still get a discount 
on the minimum charge? 

 Does this include kitchen use? 

 Which room are you proposing to 
charge £150 for? 

 Are the rough costings just for a 
meeting?  What would it cost to 
hire the Ballroom for example? 

 Is there any chance of groups 
opening up the venues 
themselves?  What would the 
implication be re. insurance, 
health and safety? 

 Need simple kitchen use – kettle 
etc.  

 Small room hire should be 
proportionate – there is a risk that 
there will be no market for 
meetings at this cost.  

P
age 66



  

 

 

 
Minimum charge 

 

Comments from general public  

Pros Cons Queries / comments Alternatives / amendments 

 This will recover the costs – 
should be set at the market rate. 

 It is necessary – good concept. 

 We need some sort of minimum – 
whether it is a minimum charge or 
hours of hire. 

 Needs to be set so that it 
generates a profit. 

 If the charge isn’t set high 
enough, then the hire is still being 
subsidised. 

 This is a big jump up for 
community groups. 

 Possible damage to reputation.  

 How does your cancellation policy 
work?  You need to get the 
balance right. 

 Do you still get the discount from 
the minimum charge? 

 The minimum hire charge should 
be the same as the market rate. 

 Could you have a minimum 
length of booking? 

 The venues need marketing – 
exploit free publicity, the venues 
e-bulletin doesn’t make you want 
to go. 

 Change the discount rather than 
putting the cost up. 

 The Pomegranate and Winding 
Wheel lend themselves to 
different types of package to the 
Assemble Rooms and Hasland 
Village Hall.  

  

P
age 67



  

 
Charge full cost 

 

Comments from hirers focus group  

Pros Cons Queries / comments Alternatives / amendments 

 We want to keep the venues 
open 

 Transparent and straightforward 

 The principle is right, but it is 
difficult to agree to this when we 
don’t know what the full cost 
would be 

 This works for private/commercial 
hire, but not for community use. 

 The cost is too high – you won’t 
get the custom.  

 Does not work for community 
groups 

 Groups can only take so much. 

 Pomegranate and Winding Wheel 
amateurs feel like they are 
subsidising the professional days. 

 Corkage! 

 It needs a clear and tariff of 
charges.  People need to know 
what they are paying up-front – 
packages. 

 Scheduling can have an impact – 
eg. professional productions 
booked at similar times to similar 
amateurs.  

 We want to know at the outset 
what the cost will be. 

 Needs to be in fair proportion – 
eg small room hire. 

 Make efficiencies – groups get 
three lots of everything and 
couples get things twice (mail 
outs).  You need to minimise 
these costs. 

 Would it be better to charge more 
up front? 

 Professional shows don’t pay 
enough (2 groups said this) 

 Better marketing and use of 
social media would improve 
things. 

 ‘Friends of’ needs marketing more 
to get more income. 

 Need for more joined up thinking 
about the venues – is it realistic to 
have these four venues within this 
small area? 

 Can we replicate some of the 
hotel packages – more meal 
packages to get businesses in? 

 We need to be encouraging 
people into the theatres all year 
round – not just for the panto.  

 Is there opportunity to take a 
‘grandfathering’ approach, where 
new bookings start paying the 
higher tariffs and existing users 
have more of a gradual increase 
in charge? 

P
age 68



  

  

 

 
Charge full cost 

 

Comments from hirers focus group  

Pros Cons Queries / comments Alternatives / amendments 

 We need to try and reflect the full 
cost needs in the simplified 
packages. 

 Private individuals eg. weddings 
should be paying the full cost. 

 It keeps the Council tax/subsidy 
down. 

 The Council should not be hiring 
any venues out at less than the 
full cost.  

 Hirers should be paying for the 
service – shouldn’t be discounted. 

 The lowest rate should be the 
cost price, and some 
organisations (commercial) 
should be paying more than this.  

 Extras to the contract should be 
profitable. 

 This might become complicated 

 Could lead to reputational 
damage with regular hirers. 

 

 We need to promote to more 
commercial customers. 

 Need to increase commercial 
hire.  

 Any change needs to be 
transparent.  

 

 Regular hirers should have the 
changes staggered, but not new 
ones.  

 Try to move cheaper bookings to 
cheaper rooms. 

 Need to negotiate the rates and 
prices. 

 Private sector could run the 
venue.  

 The schedule of staffing, charges 
etc needs to be blatantly obvious 
for hirers. 

 Do we gold plate health and 
safety, making the cost to the 
Council and hirers higher? 

 Can you use volunteers to greet 
people etc? 

 Why doesn’t the Council use a 
different fund to pay for the 
discount to charities, so that it 
doesn’t come out of the venues 
budget? 

Other comments  

 Who is coordinating the bookings across all venues?  It needs to be someone that has a good overall knowledge of all the venues who can negotiate with 
hirers. 

 Do you think the prices that the box office charge for selling tickets on our behalf need looking at? 

 We have had to pay for going over our booking time when we had to wait for an ambulance to arrive after a member of our organisation had a fall on 
stage. 

 The whole of group 3 wanted to note that the staff working across all venues are very good – can’t fault them.  

P
age 69



  

 

P
age 70



Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of 
Regulation 21(1)(A) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

By virtue of 
Regulation 21(1)(A) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Forward Plan
	5 Options for Closed Community Rest Rooms (R320)
	6 Review of fees and charges for the Venues, including the Winding Wheel, Pomegranate Theatre, Hasland Village Hall and the Market Hall Assembly Rooms (T240)
	8 Derbyshire County Council's Consultation on Proposed Budget Cuts - Potential Impact on Housing Service (H000)
	Appendix A


